
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

 
An Extraordinary Meeting of East Hampshire District Council will be held via Skype 
for Business on Thursday, 13 August 2020 at 6.30 pm, or at the rising of the Annual 
Council meeting, when your attendance is requested to consider the business set 
out in the agenda below.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Gill Kneller 
Chief Executive 

 
 

   

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 (Items open to the Public)  
 
1  Chairman's Announcements   

 
To receive any reports the Chairman wishes to make. 
 
2  Apologies for Absence, Confirmation of Attendance and Declarations 

of Interest   
 

3  Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel  (Pages 1 - 14) 
 

4  Appointment of Returning Officer   
 

5  Public Questions (Standing Order 13.4(e) - CHAIRMAN TO CONFIRM   
 

To deal with any public questions notified at least two clear working days before the 
meeting and in accordance with the Council’s protocol for public questions. 
  
http://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9789/ProtocolforPublicQuestionsatE
HDCCouncilSept2018.docx.pdf 
 
 
6  Cabinet and Committee Recommendations   

 

http://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9789/ProtocolforPublicQuestionsatEHDCCouncilSept2018.docx.pdf
http://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s9789/ProtocolforPublicQuestionsatEHDCCouncilSept2018.docx.pdf


  
 

Recommendations to Council arising from the Cabinet meeting 
held on 19 March 2020  
 
7  Welfare & Wellbeing Vision and Action Plan (Pages 15 - 48) 

 
8  Digital Strategy 2020-2024 (Pages 49 - 68) 

 
9  Emergency Scheme of Delegations (Pages 69 – 8) 
 

Recommendations to Council arising from the Cabinet meeting 
held on 9 July 2020  
 
10  Corporate Strategy   

 
Please note that consultation on the attached Corporate Strategy concludes on 7 
August 2020, therefore the strategy document and associated appendices will follow 
under separate cover. 
 
11  Climate & Environment Strategy (Pages 81 - 100) 

 

Recommendations to Council arising from the Joint Human 
Resources Committee meeting held on 13 August 2020  
 
12  Pay Policy Statement (Pages 101 - 116) 

 
13  Delegated Decision for Noting (Pages 117 - 122) 

 

 Deferment of Annual Council  
 
14  Motions Received under Procedural Order 14.1 (Pages 123 - 126) 

 
The Council to debate the attached Motions, received in accordance with standing 
order 14.1,  
 
Motion 1 proposed by Councillor Taylor and seconded by Councillor Boxall. 
 
Motion 2 proposed by Councillor Maroney and seconded by Councillor Hunt. 
 
15  Questions under Procedural Order 23.4 (a)   

 
To deal with any questions from Councillors received at least 48 hours before the 
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 23.4(a). 
 
 



 

 

NON EXEMPT  
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Council 13 August 2020 
 
 
Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel   
 
FOR DECISION 
 
EHCL/030/2020 
 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 
1.1  An Independent Remuneration Panel (comprising of Mr Michael Bevis, 

Mr John Thompson and Mr John Pressdee) has undertaken a review of 
Councillor allowances. 

 
2.0 Recommendation  
 

(i) The Independent Remuneration Panel recommends that the 
scheme of allowances in the table below be agreed and back dated 
to 1 April 2020; 

 
Allowance Current Recommended No Increase Cost 

Basic Allowance £5,200 £5,512 43 £312 £13,416 
Chairman £3,000 £3,200 1 £200 £200 
Leader £18,000 £19,000 1 £1,000 £1,000 
Deputy Leader £10,000 £10,600 1 £600 £600 
Cabinet Member £6,000 £6,360 8 £360 £2,880 
Assistant Portfolio Holder £3,000 £3,200 8 £200 £1,600 
Planning Committee Chairman £6,000 £6,360 1 £360 £360 
Planning Committee Vice Chairman £3,000 £3,200 1 £200 £200 
Overview and Scrutiny Chairman £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 
Licensing Committee Chairman £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 
Development Policy and Affordable 
Housing Panel £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 
Joint HR Committee Chairman £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 

 
(ii) An additional £21,000 is allocated to the budget for members 

allowances to cover the additional expenditure of the revised 
scheme; and 
 

(iii) The Council undertakes to appoint and maintain an Independent 
Remuneration Panel for a period of four years to allow the panel 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

to be consulted on proposed changes to the Councillors 
allowance scheme during this period. 

 
3.0 Executive Summary  
 
3.1  The panel produced a questionnaire that was distributed to the Council 

membership, interviewed a representative a cross section of members 
and undertook a benchmarking exercise of comparable Councils. 
Taking this information into account the Panel have produced the 
attached recommendations.   

 
3.2 Agreeing the scheme of Councillor Allowances is a function of Full 

Council, however the Council must pay regard to the recommendations 
of the panel. 

 
4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications  
 
4.2 If approved, the recommendations proposed by the panel would incur 

additional expenditure of £21,056 per annum. 
 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 

Directorate Business Plan/s 
 
5.1 Under the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 

Regulations 2003 and subsequent amendments to these regulations 
(SI 1022 and SI 1692), all authorities are required to establish an 
Independent Remuneration Panel to make recommendations to 
Council on Members’ Allowances. A new scheme of allowances must 
be agreed at least every four years, with the Council taking regard to a 
review from an Independent Remuneration Panel. 
 

5.2 Since 2011 EHDC has only received a review every four years.  
Previously, the Independent Remuneration Panel was a standing panel 
which reported annually.  The purpose of a standing panel is to allow 
the local authority the flexibility to change its committee structure and 
associated Special Responsibility Allowances at any time and to have 
these allowances reviewed by the IRP as required by legislation.   

 
6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 
 
6.1 N/A 
 
7.0 Resource Implications 

 
7.1 Financial Implications – As detailed under section 4.0  

 
7.2 Human Resources Implications - None 
 
7.3 Other Resource Implication – None 
 

Page 2



 

 

8.0 Legal Implications 
 
8.1 The Council is required to review its scheme of councillor allowances at 

least every four years, following a review by an Independent 
Remuneration Panel.  The last report of an Independent Remuneration 
Panel was considered by the councils in 2016.  The panel’s 
recommendations are not binding on the Council, but the Council must 
be seen to give due consideration to the panel’s work and should give 
reasons where it does not agree with a panel’s recommendation. 

 
9.0 Risks 
 
9.1 None to report. 
 
10 Consultation  
 
10.1 All members of the Council were given the opportunity to complete the 

Panel’s questionnaire and cross section of eight Councillors 
encompassing all political parties were interviewed by the Panel. 

 
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 – The Independent Remuneration Panel’s report in respect of 
EHDC Councillor Allowances. 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 East Hampshire District Council 
 

 

 

Report of 
 

     the Independent Remuneration Panel 
 

 

     on the review of the 

 

 

   Members’ Allowances Scheme 

 

 

 

 

 

January 2020 

  

Page 5



2 
 

Introduction  
The Independent Remuneration Panel, comprising Mr Michael Bevis (Chairman), Mr 

John Thompson and Mr John Pressdee, has undertaken a review of the Councillors’ 

allowances Scheme and this report sets out its recommendations. Mr Bevis was on 

the Arun DC Panel from 2001 to 2008 and has been and has been on the Chichester 

DC Panel since 2011. Mr Thompson has been on the Arun DC Panel since 2001 

(with a short break) and Chair for most of that time and on the Chichester DC Panel 

since 2015. Mr Pressdee has been on the Chichester DC Panel since 2007 and has 

been Chair since 2011.  

 

In accordance with Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 

2003, the Panel was tasked with undertaking a review of the councillors’ allowances 

scheme including the amount of each allowance in the current scheme. See 

Appendix B. The Panel worked between August 2019 and January 2020. The aim of 

the Panel has been to ensure that Members are not out of pocket, and that the 

allowances reflect fair recognition of the responsibility accepted and the time 

devoted to the various roles. We have tried to achieve an appropriate balance 

between the needs of the Authority and its Members and the cost to the tax payer. 

 

 

During this period the Panel: 

 Were briefed on the operation of East Hampshire DC, the working of the Council 

and the Members’ responsibilities. 

 Carried out two benchmarking exercises against similar local authorities in the 

South East of England and the South East Employers’ (SEE). Data for all 

Authorities in the South East helped inform the Panel’s recommendations. 

Circulated a questionnaire to all Members (22 out of 43 were returned -51%) 

 Interviewed a representative cross section of Members 

 Became aware that the Scheme approved by the Council on 3rd December 2008 

was updated as from 1st April 2016 and remained in place until amended in 

September 2019. The latter amendments however taking place without referring 

them first to an Independent Review Panel in accordance with s19 of the 

Members Allowances Regulations referred to above. Prior to this the Council had 

had  an Independent Review Panel which undertook a full review in 2008 and 

then light touch reviews proposing minor updates in2010, 2011 and 2012. 

 

The Panel determined that: 

 a Public Service Element of about 30% should be taken into account. The Public 

Service Element being work undertaken as a Councillor outside the Scheme of 

Allowances  

 the Scheme and any increases should be affordable both financially and in terms 

of public perception  

 any Member may Renounce all or part of any allowance they are entitled to 

receive under the scheme 

Page 6



3 
 

 

 only one SRA only should be paid to an individual Member – supported by most 

respondents to the Questionnaire.   

 

A number of common themes became apparent through this research and the panel 

would like to record its gratitude to Members for sparing their time both to complete 

the questionnaire and attend for interviews. The Panel were also grateful for the 

support of Officers, particularly James Harris. 

 

Evidence and Recommendations 

The conclusions of the panel are as follows: 

 

 (i) Most Members responding to the Questionnaire and at interview were clear 

that Members’ Allowance were not a factor in them standing for election. 

Indeed some had not been aware, when considering whether to stand, that 

members received allowances and any realistic Scheme would not greatly 

increase the diversity and engagement of the public in the local democracy. 

The Panel is aware that an argument was put forward by the previous Panel 

for performance to be taken into account in the Scheme of Members’ 

Allowances. The current panel are aware that some Members do a lot more 

than others – to the annoyance of other Members. The performance of 

Members is a matter for their Group Leader and possibly the Head of Paid 

Service. The Panel endorses the previous Panel’s welcome for improved 

training provision. The Panel was pleased to note that the Authority has 

attracted a number of younger people to be Councillors: although the clear 

message is that the Scheme of Allowances has limited bearing on whether 

individuals stand for election. A number of Members referred to the time of 

day meetings are held as presenting some problems. 

 

 

(ii)    Basic Allowance.   

During the review the Panel: 

 Were informed through the responses to questionnaires: 

o The hours per month spent by Members on Council work 

averaged out 32 hours per month for attendance at Council, 

Committees Working Groups etc including preparation and 

travelling, 15 hours per month on outside bodies as the 

Council’s representative, 40 hours per month dealing with Ward 

business and 6 hours per month on Political group matters. 

o Of respondents who had been Members in 2015  3 reported that 

the work load on Members had remained the same while 7 

reported increases of between 10 and 100 hours a month 

Page 7



4 
 

o 11 of those responding suggested the Basic Allowance should 

remain unchanged from the current figure of £5,200 while 9 

proposed increases to figures between £5,700 and £9,390.  

 Were given more information and rationale during interviews 

 It is clear that overall workloads have increased and, in future, might be 

expected to continue to increase – the Panel noted that the increased 

use of social media and the expectation of faster responses to electors 

enquires had had an impact on the way in which many Members work 

 Found that for the comparator Authorities the current allowance was at 

the third quartile and for all South East Authorities was in the bottom 

quartile. 

 Index linking allowances to Officers Pay was agreed a fair way forward, 

but not by all. The increase in Officers pay from 2015 is about 6% - or a 

£312. The Council has local arrangements rather than following the 

NJC Pay Awards but the pay awards have mirrored the NJC awards 

since 2015. 

  

 

 The Panel’s recommendation is that the Basic Allowance (including the IT 

Allowance) be increased from £5,200 by £312 to £5,512 

 

(iii) Chairman of the Council 

        The Scheme as it applied from 1st April 2016 made provision for an SRA of 

£3000. Opinion was divided among those returning questionnaires with 6 

supporting the current rate and 6 proposing increases.   An increase in line 

with officers’ pay would result in an increase of £180.  The Chairman has a 

hospitality budget of £2500 and a car hire budget of £4,500 managed by the 

Council. 

  

 

 The Panel recommends that the Chairman’s SRA is increased from £3000 

by £200 to £3,200. 

  

(iv) Leader of the Council. The answers to the returned questionnaires and the 

follow up interviews showed a divergence of views as to whether   the 

Leaders SRA should be increased. There were indeed some who thought it 

might be reduced. However, the Leader devotes about three days a week to 

the role: not all in the office. The Leader is ultimately responsible for all the 

key policy decisions of the Authority. From the benchmarking data the Leader’ 

SRA is in the middle of the third quartile of SEE comparators and near the 

median of the comparable Authorities. An increase in line with officers’ pay 

would be appropriate. 

 

Page 8



5 
 

The Panel therefore recommends that the Leader’ SRA of £18,000 be 

increased by £1000 to £19,000 

 

 (v) Deputy Leader. Welfare and Community Integration Portfolio. Given the 

responses to the Panel’s enquiries and taking into account benchmarking 

against other similar local authorities which puts the Deputy Leader’s 

allowance in the third quartile of SSE Authorities and close to the median of 

comparator Authorities. An increase in line with Officers’ pay would add £600 

to the allowance.   

 

The Panel recommends the Deputy Leader’s SRA of £10,000 be increased 

by £600 to £10,600. 

 

(vi) Cabinet Members.  The role of the cabinet member can be high profile. The 

panel notes that the current SRA of £6,000 is in the third quartile of 

comparable Authorities and lowest of SSE Authorities. An increase in line with 

Officers’ pay would add £360 to the allowance. 

 

The Panel recommends that the Cabinet Members’ SRA is increased from 

£6,000 by £360 to £6360. 

  

        Portfolio Assistants (previously called Member Project Leads) currently 

receive SRAs of £3,000. The Panel recommends that their SRAs are 

increased from £3,000 by £200 to £3,200. 

 

(vii)  Committee Chairmen.  The Panel is mindful of the differing responsibilities of 

the council’s various committees and notes that there are three different levels 

of allowances to reflect their responsibilities.  Benchmarking is difficult as 

increasingly Authorities organise their committees in different ways than the 

Council has done. Also, some authorities are moving away from Cabinet 

based governance and returning to varying forms of Committee systems  

 

 a) Planning Committee Chairman.  The Panel is aware from experience 

elsewhere of the considerable work done around Planning and Development 

Control. There is evidence to support the level of responsibility of this high 

profile role and the work required.  Also the Chairman is responsible for some 

quasi-judicial functions. It noted however that the current allowance is now in 

the middle of the 2nd Quartile of comparator authorities and in the 2nd Quartile 

of SEE reporting authorities. An increase in line with Officers’ pay would add 

£360 to the allowance. The proposed increase would move the SRA nearer 

the median of comparator authorities. 

 

The Panel recommends that the Planning Committee Chairman’s SRA be 

increased from £6,000 by £360 to £6,360. 

Page 9



6 
 

 

The Panel also recommends the Vice Chairman’s SRA be increased from 

£3,000 by £200 to £3,200. 

  

The Panel makes no recommendation for an increase in respect of the SRA 

paid to Members of the Planning Committee which should remain at £250. 

  

 b)  The previous single Governance, Audit and Scrutiny has been superseded 

by three committees – Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Standards 

Committee and Audit Committee 

 

The Panel recommends that the SRA paid to the Chairmen of each 

Committee is increased from £2,000 by £200 to £2,200. 

 

c) Licensing Committee Chairman Based on evidence received, the work load 

of the Licencing Committee (and sub-Committees) is variable as is number of 

meetings per year.  The Chairman is responsible for some quasi-judicial 

functions. A majority responding Members thought the SRA about right. The 

current SRA is at the bottom of the top quartile of SEE and the third quartile of 

Comparator Authorities 

 

The Panel recommends that the Licensing Committee Chairman’s SRA be 

increased from £2,000 by £200 to £2200. 

 

 The Panel makes no recommendation for an increase in respect of the SRA 

paid to members of the Licensing Committee which should remain at £250. 

 

d) Development Policy and Affordable Housing Panel Chairman  

 

The Panel recommends that the Chairman’s SRA be increased from £2,000 

by £200 to £2200 

 

e) The Panel recognises the work of the Joint HR Committee and its 

contribution to efficient operation with a partner Authority. It also notes that the 

Chairmanship rotates annually with Havant Borough Council and suggests 

that achieving parity over time between the two councils would be both logical 

and fair, however, the EHDC Chairman currently receiving £2,000 the Panel 

recommends an increase of £200 to £2200 to be broadly in line with other 

increases recommended.   

   

(viii) Non ruling party group leaders.  The current scheme pays an SRA of £3000 

and no strong case was made for an increase.  In the Panel’s view taking into 

account what is paid elsewhere this arrangement is fair and provides an 

appropriate level of support to ensure there is effective opposition. 

Page 10



7 
 

 

 The Panel recommends that these arrangements remain unchanged. 

 

(xi) Mileage and Subsistence.  No case was made for any changes in the current 

arrangements. The panel recommends that the mileage remain at 45pence a 

mile and all other rates be linked to those paid to Officers. 

 

(x) Child care and dependent relative care allowances.  The panel is keen that 

those councillors who have young children or dependent relatives should not 

be disadvantaged financially when attending council meetings.  Given the 

time of council meetings and coupled to an average time that a babysitter 

would be required a rate of £10.00 is recommended by the Panel.  The Panel 

also recommends that the allowance for dependent relative care be 

maintained up to the Hampshire County Council Domiciliary care rate 

In respect of these allowances, councillors should be encouraged to use the 

most cost effective solution that ensures adequate safeguarding and provides 

the required level of care. 

 

 

   

(xi) Effective date 1 April 2020 

 

 

The cost of the proposed changes is £21,056 or xxxx% of the current Members’ 

Allowances budget. 

 

Under current legislation a new scheme must be adopted every four years, following 

a review from an Independent Remuneration Panel.  The Panel recommends that 

the next review be carried out in 2023 with a view to an updated scheme being in 

place by April 2024. 

 
16th January 2020  

Page 11



8 
 

 
Appendix A 

 
 

Allowance Current Recommended No Increase Cost  

Basic Allowance £5,200 £5,512 43 £312 £13,416 

Chairman £3,000 £3,200 1 £200 £200 

Leader £18,000 £19,000 1 £1,000 £1,000 

Deputy Leader £10,000 £10,600 1 £600 £600 

Cabinet Member £6,000 £6,360 8 £360 £2,880 

Assistant Portfolio Holders £3,000 £3,200 8 £200 £1,600 

Planning Committee Chairman £6,000 £6,360 1 £360 £360 

Planning Committee Vice Chairman £3,000 £3,200 1 £200 £200 

Overview and Scrutiny Chairman £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 

Licensing Committee Chairman £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 

Development Policy and Affordable Housing £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 

Joint HR Committee Chairman £2,000 £2,200 1 £200 £200 

     

£21,056 
 

 
 
 
Additional allowances 
Mileage: To be maintained in line with the HMRC rate, currently 45p per mile.    This 
should not include ward business or political activities, such as attending group 
meetings. 
 
Other Travel and Substance Rates: Paid in line with arrangement applying to 
Officers 
 
Child care: £10.00 per hour. 
 
Dependent relative care: Paid in line with the Hampshire CC Domiciliary care rate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



9 
 

 
Appendix B 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE – INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 2019 

 
The following terms of reference have been set for the Independent Remuneration 
Panel for 2019: 
  
 To make recommendations to the Council:  
 

1. as to the amount of basic allowances that should be paid to Councillors; 
  

2. about the responsibilities or duties which should lead to the payment of a 
special responsibility allowance and as to the amount of such allowances;  
 

3. as to any amount relating to and ICT provision for Councillors; 
 

4. about the duties for which a travelling and subsistence allowance can be paid 
and as to the amount of such allowances;  

 
5. as to the allowance for arranging for the care of children and dependants and 

for the duties for which such allowance can be paid; 
 

6. on whether any allowance should be backdated to the beginning of a financial 
year in the event of the scheme being amended; and 

 
7. as to whether annual adjustments of allowance levels may be made by 

reference to an index and, if so, for how long such a measure should run. 
 
In forming its recommendations, the panel will pay regard to affordability and public 
perception. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NON EXEMPT  
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
COUNCIL 13 August 2020 
 
 
Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2024 
Report Author: Community Manager 
 

 

FOR DECISION 
 
Portfolio:  Welfare and Community Integration 
                  Deputy Leader Cllr Julie Butler 
 
Key Decision: Yes 
 
Report No.  EHCL/009/2020 
 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. This report is submitted to Council for approval to adopt the Welfare 
and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
2.0 Recommendation  
 

2.1. At its meeting held on 19 March 2020 Cabinet Recommended that the 
Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy be adopted. 

 
3.0 Summary  

 
3.1 The Strategy and Action Plan set out the intentions of the Council and 

partners to improve the wellbeing and welfare of residents across East 
Hampshire and to improve the lives of vulnerable people living in our 
communities. It is an evidence led document with clear priorities and 
actions to be delivered over the period of the Strategy.    

 
The evidence has led to 3 key priorities and are sub divided into specific 
aims to improve residents’ welfare and wellbeing: - 

 
3.1.1. Delivering physical and mental wellbeing 

A. Improving mental wellbeing 

B. Reducing obesity 

C. Improving physical activity 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

 

3.1.2. Supporting an ageing population 

A. A dementia friendly district 

B. Encouraging resilience and independence 

C. Reducing social isolation 

 
3.1.3. Improving community connectivity and sense of place 

A. Access to quality community infrastructure to include open and 

green spaces 

3.3 Preventing homelessness across the district and access to a decent 

home. To ensure the document remains ‘live’, the Action Plan will be 

regularly reviewed as part of regular performance appraisal monitoring 

and against targets in the Community Business Plan.  The Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel will review the progress annually in an open session with 

a briefing to Councillors.   

3.4 It was announced in 2019 that £500,000 was allocated to a Welfare 

Fund and some of the projects within the Welfare and Wellbeing Action 

Plan will be funded through this Fund.  It was also announced within the 

current financial statement that there would be an additional £215,000 

for the Welfare Fund. 

3.5 The Strategy includes a comprehensive Action Plan, divided into 2 plans, 

one, outlining East Hampshire District Council led projects and the other 

outlining partner-led projects, setting out the Council’s key priorities for 

2020-2021.  Some actions are already being funded by a variety of 

sources, which include the Councils Supporting Communities Fund, 

Radian and other funders, for example the Lottery.  Other actions and 

projects are yet to receive funding and it is anticipated that the Welfare 

Fund would be used to deliver these projects. 

3.6 We would seek to access and award the Welfare Fund to projects that 

are evidence based, improve residents’ welfare and wellbeing and that 

the decision to award this funding to be under a delegated decision to the 

Portfolio Holder for Welfare and Community Integration.  The current 

Cabinet Liaison Panel - Grants and Awards, would be used to debate and 

recommend projects for approval to the Welfare Fund.   

4.0 Appendices:  
 

4.1 Appendix A – Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy 
4.1.1 Appendix 1 - Action Plan.   
4.1.2 Appendix 2 – Supporting evidence. 
4.1.3 Appendix 3 – Key Evidence Comparisons 

 
 
 

Page 16



 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 
Monitoring Officer 
S151 Officer:  
Director 
Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Jacqui Evans 
Job Title: Community Manager   
Telephone:  01730 234156  
E-Mail: Jacqui.evans@easthants.gov.uk  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



1  
 

East Hampshire Welfare and 
Wellbeing Strategy 

2020 - 2024 
 

 

Our Vision: 

To improve the Welfare and Wellbeing 

of residents across East Hampshire. To 

improve the lives of vulnerable people 

living in our communities 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 19



2  
 

Contents: - 

1. Foreword by Councillor Julie Butler 

 

2. Our Vision 

 

3. Our Priorities 

 

4. What impacts on people’s Welfare and 

Wellbeing 

 

5. Appendix 1 – Action Plan 2020-2021 

 

 

6. Appendix 2 – Supporting Evidence 

 

7. Appendix 3 – Key Evidence Comparisons 

 

 

  

Page 20



3  
 

1.0 Foreword by Councillor Julie Butler Deputy Leader, Welfare and 

Community Integration Portfolio Holder:-- 

I am delighted to introduce the Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2024 which 

outlines what East Hampshire District Council will do to improve the welfare and 

wellbeing of our residents in the district.   

The development of this new Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy comes at a time of 

great change in welfare, housing and social policy nationally.  In today’s society 

there are numerous social and economic pressures for everyone, particular those 

who are vulnerable in our communities.   

As a Council, we want to make a difference to those who may be struggling, 

and we want to help to improve their welfare and wellbeing.   

East Hampshire is a beautiful and great place to live and our communities’ health is 

generally good, however outcomes are not as good for some people as they could 

be.  One of the aims of this 4-year strategy is to start to narrow the gap between 

those wards with the best and worst welfare and wellbeing.  We will do this by 

working together with our partners and our communities to co-produce services. 

I am really proud of this strategy which is evidence based and sets out the issues 

that are specific to East Hampshire.  It considers the challenges and opportunities 

that will come forward in the next 4 years, and it provides our priorities for future 

action.  

 

Councillor Julie Butler, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Lead for Welfare and 

Community Integration 

 

  

Page 21



4  
 

2.0 Our Vision: - 

Our vision is to improve the Welfare and Wellbeing of residents across East 

Hampshire and to improve the lives of vulnerable people living in our 

community 

We are fortunate that many people in East Hampshire do experience an excellent 
quality of life, good health, and high welfare and wellbeing.  However, we are also 
aware that not everyone experiences this quality of life and we want to enable all 
residents to reach their full potential.  
 
Our core functions as a Council including Environmental Health, Planning and 
Housing can all influence residents’ welfare and wellbeing, but we also have a wider 
role to play in supporting communities to enable people to improve their welfare and 
wellbeing.  
 
Vulnerability: - 
 
Let us start by defining what the Council means by vulnerability: - 

 
To be vulnerable means for a person to have less opportunity to reach their full 
potential.  It is about not having the same choices, access to opportunities, or life 
chances, which can increase an individual’s susceptibility to being harmed; either 
physically, emotionally, or financially.  As a council we want to ensure that everyone 
has access to the same choices, opportunities and life chances to improve their lives 
and to live well.   
 
Vulnerable residents within East Hampshire can be young or old, working or 
retired, living alone or in families. Some will only need support for a fixed 
period of time, others for longer term.  Working with our partners we want to offer 
this support in a targeted, effective and sustainable way. 
 
This strategy sets out the key priorities we will focus on to assist those who are 
vulnerable, to improve their wellbeing over a four-year period 2020-2024, in line with 
the Corporate Plan.  The Action Plan (Appendix 1) outlines the projects and actions 
that will take place in the first year of this strategy and the approach we will take to 
deliver these.   
 
The Council has already made a great start towards delivering on improving our 
residents’ wellbeing within the community. In 2019, £270,967 was awarded through 
the Supporting Communities Fund to 17 organisations to deliver projects and 
services across the district focusing on improving people’s lives.   
  

Page 22



5  
 

We are already reaping the positive impact from these projects across the area and 
receive regular feedback from the organisations.  We want to expand on this 
excellent work and deliver more relevant projects and services to improve our 
residents’ welfare and wellbeing.  
 
3.0 Our Key Priorities 
The key priorities reflect where we consider is the greatest need and potential for the 
Council to impact residents’ welfare and wellbeing are based on evidence (see 
Appendix 3 Key Evidence Comparisons), they are: -  
 

1. Delivering physical and mental wellbeing 
2. Supporting an ageing population 
3. Improving community connectivity and sense of place 

 
 
Our priorities have been guided by: - 
 

 What we know about the welfare and wellbeing of East Hampshire’s 
communities 

 Hampshire County Council Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2024 – the 
key aims of prevention, tackling inequalities, enabling healthier communities 
and strategic leadership are strongly linked in East Hampshire District Council 
strategy. 

 Related plans and strategies including East Hampshire District Council 
(EHDC) Corporate Plan, the EHDC Emerging Local Plan, EHDC 
Homelessness and Rough Sleepers Strategy 2019-2024, EHDC Enhance 
East Hampshire 2020, NHS Putting Health into Place, Hampshire Emotional 
Wellbeing and Mental Health Strategy for Children and Young People and 
other local care and health plans, (see Appendix 2 for the full list of supporting 
documents).  

 Conversations with our services and local organisations and people 
 
Funding 
At East Hampshire District Council, we have committed funding to deliver on these 
priorities.  This commitment is £1 million over a 3-year period, which began in 2019 
through our Supporting Communities Funds which funded 17 organisations to deliver 
projects and services across the district to improve our residents’ welfare and 
wellbeing in 2019/20.   
 
We have commissioned an advice service for the district and in 2019 this was 
awarded to Citizens Advice East Hampshire for the next 3 years.  We also fund 
Community First to work with all our voluntary and community organisations to 
ensure they are fit for the future and continue to deliver services to improve 
residents’ welfare and wellbeing.  
 
We are proud that as a council we are bucking the national trend to be able to 
financially support these services and projects, and this strategy sets out how we will 
continue to do this, as well as monitoring the impact we make to people’s lives.  
 
  

Page 23



6  
 

4.0 What impacts people’s Welfare and Wellbeing? 
There are many factors that contribute towards a person’s welfare and wellbeing. 
When an individual takes responsibility for their own wellbeing and that of their 
children or family, they also increase their collective prospects for a better quality of 
life. Where you live, your home, the physical environment as well as the people that 
are around you, will all influence your welfare and wellbeing. 
 
Put simply, there are several areas that impact a person’s welfare and wellbeing as 
Figure 1 shows below. 
  

 
 
 
 
Figure 1 – The range of factors which influence our Welfare and Wellbeing 
Source: Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 2016-17   
 

How East Hampshire can influence Welfare and Wellbeing 
 

 Commission projects and services to improve residents’ welfare and wellbeing 

 Award grants to projects and services to improve residents’ welfare and 
wellbeing 

 As an enabler of high-quality communities and homes through the Local Plan 

 Providing environments where people can be active including our green 
spaces and leisure centres 

 Influence the wider determinants of welfare and wellbeing through our 
statutory services: planning, housing, environmental health.  

 Through partnership and collaboration with key partners: - 
o Hampshire County Council  
o Public Health 
o Primary Care Networks (We have two in our district: the A31 PCN and 

the East Hampshire PCN)  
o Voluntary and Community Sector  

 

 
  

Page 24



7  
 

1.0 Delivering Physical and Mental Wellbeing  
 
Physical and mental wellbeing should not be thought of separately.  Physical health 
problems significantly increase the risk of poor mental health and wellbeing, and vice 
versa. Figure 2 outlines the health benefits of physical activity. 
 

 
Figure 2, Source: Physical Activity Applying All Our Health (gov.uk)   
 
 

Enabling and ensuring a high standard of physical and mental wellbeing for East 
Hampshire residents is a key priority in this strategy. In line with Hampshire’s Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy priorities ‘Starting well’, ‘Living well’, ‘Ageing well’, and ‘Dying 
well’, we recognise the importance of physical and mental health across a 
lifespan.  
 
Success measures include raised levels of physical activity and healthy eating, lower 
rates of obesity, and fewer hospital admissions for self-harm, particularly for 
children and young people.  
 

Why is this a priority in East Hampshire? 

 Several wards have higher levels of physical inactivity (between 21.6% - 
25.9%): Alton Eastbrooke, Alton Wooteys, Whitehill Chase, Whitehill 
Pinewood, Headley, Lindford, Petersfield Causeway, and Petersfield 
Heath. 

 65% of adults are overweight or obese in East Hampshire. In children 
this is 22% for reception-age rising to 30% in year 6. 

Page 25



8  
 

 East Hampshire has 111.5 fast food outlets per 100,000 residents, 
which is significantly higher than the England average, and is the highest 
in Hampshire. The area with the highest concentration is Bordon.   

 In East Hampshire the rate of emergency hospital admissions for 
intentional self-harm is 205.6 per 100,000. This is much higher than the 
England average, and is particularly high among children and young 
people aged 10-24.  

 People who live in more deprived areas – where there is less access to 
things like services, work, and education – are more at risk of suicide. 

 There is a gap in provision for young people with mental health concerns 
and the pressure on Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service 
(CAMHS) is increasing.  

 Around 27% of East Hampshire’s population were economically 

inactive in 2011.   

 Between 2017 and 2020 East Hampshire District Council dealt with a 

number of hoarding cases.  The cost of hoarders to the council in officer 

time can be up to and above 30 hours, and if clearance occurs the cost 

can be over £8,000 for a small property.  

 SME lending debt per head in East Hampshire is £2,011.90 – 35% higher 

than the average for England.  

 Levels of personal debt are 11% higher than the England average.    

 Residential mortgage debt is 41% higher than the England average.   

 There is a significant inequality gap between the activity levels of those 

with a limiting long-term illness and those without (22.9%).    

  
Priorities under Delivering Physical and Mental Wellbeing: - 
 

a. Improving Mental Wellbeing 
b. Reducing obesity  
c. Improving physical activity  

 
1.a Improving Mental Wellbeing 

 
Across East Hampshire there is a waiting list of at least 18 months for young people 
with mental health concerns to see Children and Adolescent Mental Health Service 
(CAMHS).  This waiting list is also for those children who have a critical need.  With 
the demand for CAMHS intervention showing no signs of decreasing, there is 
growing need to offer early prevention services for children and young people, to 
help them find and access support much earlier on.  This will alleviate 
pressure on and demand for the reactive service provided by CAMHS in the 
future.  We want to fund a Social Prescriber dedicated to supporting and assisting 
young people across East Hampshire to offer practical and emotional support to 
individuals and their families, (see Action Plan 1.a.1, 1.a.4).  This service, in 
partnership with the Primary Care Network is just one service of a range of 
preventative services offered within the district focusing on improving poor, low level 
mental health.  
 

Page 26



9  
 

The Council also want to reduce the stigma that is often associated with mental 
health and we plan to do this through a suite of projects, including the Sports 
Ambassador project, a Social Crisis project to support patients with low level mental 
health issues and the Exercise Referral scheme, (see Action Plan 1.a.6, 1.a.7, 
1.a.8).  
 

We know that many factors contribute towards someone’s mental wellbeing, one 
being financial.  We commissioned and awarded a support service for the East 
Hampshire area and the highest number of requests for assistance was around 
support relating to debt and financial support.  We will continue to fund the advice 
service across the district (see Action Plan 1.a.9).  
 
 
1.b Reducing obesity  
 
We want to reduce the rate of obesity across all ages, particularly looking at children 
and young people to ensure the best start in life. We will do this by promoting and 
facilitating physical activity and healthy eating for all.   
 
The Council currently delivers two healthy eating projects in Bordon, ‘Food Academy’ 
and the ‘Good Grub Club’ both focus on providing support to cook healthier meals for 
young people and families.  The Food Academy has been nominated for a national 
award highlighting the impact it has made in the area, and excellent partnership 
working with Radian, a Registered Provider, (see Action Plan 1.b.1)  
 
There is a gap in health outcomes between Whitehill & Bordon and the rest of the 
East Hampshire, which is why we have developed the Healthy Whitehill & Bordon 
programme to continue the Healthy New Towns legacy, through funding from NHS 
England, (see Action Plan 1.b.2).  This will consist of a grant of £100,000 to deliver 
various work programmes over a 2-year period including but not limited to: 

- Working with local schools to ensure healthy eating patterns 
- An event bringing families and the community together under a healthy, active 

day  
- Implementing projects based on evidence of need to assist secondary school 

aged children with mental health issues  
- Reducing social isolation in working age men  
- Stopping the increase in the rate of emergency hospital admissions for 

intentional self-harm.  
 
We also want to promote a healthy lifestyle, through the provision of the free 
Hampshire Weight Watchers scheme (see Action Plan 1.b.4).  
 
  

Page 27



10  
 

1.c Improving physical activity 
 
We want to increase the levels of physical activity in the district generally, focusing 
on the least active areas to reduce health inequality.   
 
The Council will do this with a range of projects such as setting up Satellite Clubs 
targeting inactive young people, delivering a GP referral scheme across our 3 leisure 
centres and ensuring the right physical activities are available in the right areas (see 
Action Plan 1.c.1, 1.c.5).  
 
To ensure that our residents know where and how to get involved in physical 
activities across the district, we are working with the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) 
in the area so that GPs can make referrals to people who can support and guide 
residents in need of assistance. These people are called Social Prescribers.  Social 
Prescribers are the link between the medical staff in GP surgeries, our services here 
at the Council, and the community.  They will work alongside vulnerable residents of 
all ages to ensure they get the support they need, whether that is physical activities, 
emotional support or practical financial advice.  Social Prescribers feature across all 
3 key priorities, (see Action Plan 1.a.1, 1.a.4).  
 
2.0  – Support for an ageing population  

Supporting our ageing population is the welfare and wellbeing priority that considers 
the specific needs and challenges of an increasing ageing population. East 
Hampshire has an older than average population, with 24% of residents over 65 
years old, by 2035 31% of the population will be over 65 years.  Of the 31% 13,000 
residents will be living alone, which can lead to an increased change of social 
isolation and loneliness. We also recognise that it is not only an older resident who 
may feel lonely or isolated and the priority focusing on improving mental health also 
looks at helping those of all ages around these feelings. 
 
As the ageing population increases, so does the need to take a preventative 
approach towards promoting resilience and independence.  A more resilient and 
independent ageing population will enjoy a better quality of life, better health, and be 
less reliant on help from unpaid carers or public services.  
 
Figure 3 below shows that loneliness can lead to health problems, it also shows that 
often there is untapped potential in our older residents, which once utilised will not 
only improve their wellbeing, but contribute to their wider community. 
 

 

Page 28



11  
 

Figure 3 – Loneliness in older people  
Source: Agenda for Later Life Report, 2015 (Age UK)  
 
Success measures include fewer hospital admissions for preventable falls and 
injuries, more older people actively participating in community activities (including but 
not limited to physical activities), and lower levels of loneliness and social isolation 
among older people and carers.  
 
Why is this a priority in East Hampshire?  

 There are several wards where over 65-year-olds have a very high risk of 
loneliness: Headley, Whitehill Chase, Alton Eastbrooke, Alton Westbrooke, 
Alton Ashdell, Petersfield St Peters, and Petersfield Bell Hill. Parts of Liss 
and other Whitehill wards are also at very high risk.  

 The number of over 65s providing unpaid care in East Hampshire is 
predicted to rise from 3,923 in 2020 to 5,267 in 2035.  

 Life expectancy is 83 years, but healthy life expectancy is only 69.5 
years.  

 East Hampshire has the second highest dependency ratio in Hampshire. 
Carers are vulnerable to poor mental and physical wellbeing.  

 72% of carers say that being a carer has an adverse effect on their 
mental health.   

 53% of carers have borrowed money as a result of their caring role.  

 8 in 10 people caring for loved ones said they have felt lonely or 
socially isolated.   

 40% of carers have missed out on financial support as a result of not 
getting the right information and advice.   

 
Priorities under Supporting an Ageing Population: - 
 

a. A dementia-friendly district 
b. Encouraging resilience and independence  
c. Reduce social isolation 

 
2.a A dementia-friendly district 
 
We want to ensure that the community infrastructure and social provision in East 
Hampshire is suited for an ageing population and their specific needs. We will do this 
by considering these needs in our core functions, and by promoting the roll-out of 
dementia-friendly schemes.  
 
The Council will do this by developing and continuing to deliver a range of dementia 
projects across the district, focusing on ensuring sustainable.  These include 
Dementia Walks, promoting and supporting dementia activities, such as a Dementia 
Choir to hosting an annual Dementia festival to promote information and a Dementia 
Directory, (see Action Plan 2.a.1, 2.a.2, 2.a.3, 2.a.4, 2.a.5).  
 
  

Page 29



12  
 

2.b Encouraging resilience and independence 
 
We want to enable older residents to remain independent, healthy, and an active 
part of the community for as long as possible. We want to reduce social isolation in 
older people and carers, and hospital admissions for preventable falls and injuries.  
 
We will do this by providing community-based activities that promote resilience, as 
well as a variety of social activities for older people.  These include promoting Steady 
and Strong and Chairobics activities to delivering our very successful Walking for 
Health scheme, (see Action Plan 2.b.1, 2.b.3)  
 
We want to give older residents the choice to stay in their own homes, where their 
support network may have been built up over a number of years.  We will do this 
through several projects, from working with the Hampshire Fire and Rescue service 
to offering and delivering Disabled Facilities Grants, (see Action Plan 2.b.2, 2.b.4). 
 
2.c Reduce social isolation  

We want to reduce the risk of social isolation as well as improving the wellbeing of 

those residents who may already feel socially isolated.  We know that being a mostly 

rural district means that transport plays a huge part in someone’s feeling of isolation, 

so we fund, support and promote community transport across the district, (see Action 

Plan 2.c.1). 

Continue to fund the Supporting Communities Fund every year to organisations that 

will deliver projects to improve residents wellbeing and welfare, (see Action Plan 

3.a.1). 

Increase the access and awareness of local information for residents around getting 

active and healthy, ranging from promoting Connect to Support directory to working 

with our partners advertising sports and wellbeing activities across the district, (see 

Action Plan 2.c.2, 2.c.4, 2.c.5). 

We will work with Carers and supporitng organisations to understand their needs and 

to agree which projects and services are required to improve their wellbeing, (see 

Action Plan 2.c.3).  

  

Page 30



13  
 

3.0 – Community Connectivity and Sense of Place 
 
Social and community connectivity is the wellbeing priority that is focused on 
promoting a positive sense of place and community in East Hampshire.  
This key priority considers the impact on wellbeing and welfare of living rurally, the 
built and natural environment, access to open spaces, access to a decent 
home, health infrastructure, transport links, and the local economy.  
 
A more connected community means happier and healthier residents. A recent UK 
study found that when people feel happier and more connected, they become 12% 
more productive, which would equate to an £18 billion boost to the UK economy if 
everyone got involved in community activities.   
 
Success measures include high levels of community participation, a strong local 
economy, measures in place to assist those facing homelessness and more people 
accessing high quality community infrastructure and green spaces.  
 
Why is this a priority in East Hampshire? 

 57% of East Hampshire’s area is situated within the boundaries of the 
South Downs National Park (SDNP), making it a beautiful rural place to 
live. 17% of the district’s total area is woodland.   

 East Hampshire has 111.5 fast food outlets per 100,000 residents, 
which is significantly higher than the England average, and is the highest 
in Hampshire. The area with the highest concentration is Bordon.   

 In our National Takeover Week survey of six local schools, only 46% of 
children said they walked, cycled, or scootered to school, compared with 
81% who said they wanted to. In contrast, 52% travelled by car for all or 
some of the journey, compared with less than 10% who said they wanted 
to do so.  

 CO2 emissions per resident in East Hampshire is 5.4 tonnes – 0.3 
tonnes above the England average. 

 In the most recent census, there were 4,285 households in East 
Hampshire with no access to a car. 

 The household affordability gap is £132,181, compared with the 
England average of £42,272.  This figure measures the difference 
between the average house price and 4.5 times the annual household 
income.  

 
  

Page 31



14  
 

Priorities under Community Connectivity and Sense of Place: - 
 

a. Access to quality Community Infrastructure to include open and 
green spaces  

b. Prevent Homelessness across the district and access to a decent 
home 

 
3.a Access to quality Community Infrastructure to include quality open and 
green spaces 
 
The Council declared a climate emergency in July 2019, and we recognise the 

important links between quality open spaces and health and wellbeing, both physical 

and mental.  We have published and advertised Developer Contributions collected 

through the delivery of housing, to be spent on Environmental Improvements and 

Open Space projects across the district to see an improvement in our Co2 emissions 

(see Action Plan 3.a.1).  We also have a project to plant numerous trees across the 

district to assist in the reduction of Co2 emissions (see Action Plan 3.a.3). 

The Local Plan is our corporate document that informs and shapes infrastructure, 
new developments and any planning across our district, this includes the 
requirement for quality open and green spaces.  As part of the Local Plan, we will 
complete a Community Facility Audit to provide robust evidence used to provide new 
infrastructure across the district, (see Action Plan 3.a.2).  
 
We want to create the right community spaces to support health and wellbeing and 
we will provide Health Impact Assessments for all new major developments as part 
of the Local Plan, this will reduce fast food outlets and increase health facilities, (see 
Action Plan 3.a.4). 
 
The Council will deliver the Enhance East Hampshire Strategy which will focus on 
residents’ sense of place and how this can be improved led by all levels of 
democracy, Hampshire County Council, town and parish councils and East 
Hampshire.  
 
We will ensure that residents have access to good quality community, leisure and 
play facilities, and we will deliver the Open Space and Sports Facilities Strategies in 
line with an evidence base for the Local Plan.  
 
We will develop an environment to support Active Travel by implementing a Walking 
and Cycling Strategy looking to enhance infrastructure and increasing walking and 
cycling opportunities.  
 
We want to enable every resident to have access to our beautiful open spaces and 
to our shopping areas, so we will implement a project to inform people living in the 
district and visiting the area with disability access information, (see Action Plan 
3.a.6).  
 
  

Page 32



15  
 

3.b Prevent Homelessness across the district 
All local authorities are required to consider housing needs within their areas, 
including the needs of homeless households and have statutory duties to ensure that 
advice and assistance is available to households who are homeless or threatened 
with homelessness.  The Council have a Homelessness and Rough Sleepers 
Strategy and Action Plan 2019-2024 and has 4 key priorities: - 
 

 To ensure all our customers are provided with appropriate advice, assistance 
and support to enable them to address their housing needs and to lead 
independent lives – emphasis to be on early intervention, building on existing 
services and continually improving service delivery. 

 

 Consider more sustainable housing solutions for those facing homelessness 
and on the Housing Register 

 

 Prevent and Relieve homelessness by working in partnership with statutory 
and voluntary sector agencies to identify the threat of homelessness at the 
earliest opportunity and work together to ensure appropriate support services 
are accessible. 

 

 To understand the needs and requirements of those rough sleeping and sofa 
surfing in the district and provide sustainable solutions 

 
The action plan is linked to this Welfare and Wellbeing action, (see Action Plan 3.b.1, 
3.b.2).  
 
How we will know if the strategy is successful 
 
To ensure the document remains ‘live’, the Action Plan will be regularly reviewed as 
part of a regular performance appraisal monitoring within the Council, this will then 
be published on our website.  We will then agree the Action Plan for year 2. 
 
There are many factors that impact on wellbeing and welfare making it difficult to 
directly attribute changes to key statistics at population level to the activities of this 
strategy.  
These changes will come about because of the combined impact of a wide range of 
factors, partners, strategies and plans. Nevertheless, in the accompanying Action 
Plan, Appendix 1, shows the outcomes that will be used to provide an overall 
assessment as to whether the wellbeing of the district’s residents has improved over 
the life of the plan.  At the end of the year an update will be provided to show what 
activities has contributed to each outcome. 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



No. Objective No. What we will do By when Who will deliver 

this?

Milestones Target/Outcome

1.a.1 Commission evidence-led projects 

using the Welfare Fund  (e.g. Social 

Prescribing project)

Ongoing Various partners, 

see Partner-led 

Action Plan

Review and monitor projects 

regularly (at least once per 

annum) to ensure progress

Delivery of evidence-based projects, 

details in Partner-led Action Plan

1.a.2 Provide 5 free RAPP/GetActiv8d 

sessions for families on means-

tested benefits referred by Radian

2020/21 

financial year

EHDC Community 

Team, Radian

Deliver 5 sessions, survey 

participates on the benefits and 

review the sessions with this 

information

Children from families on means-tested 

benefits aged 2-12 accessing enjoyable 

play sessions 

1.a.3 Complete a health audit and needs 

assessment of Gypsy, Traveller, and 

Travelling Showpeople communities

Year 2 EHDC Housing, 

EHDC Planning 

Policy

Devise a health audit and needs 

assessment, determine the 

community to be audited with 

timeframes, deliver the health 

audit

Completed health audit and needs 

assessment, which will inform targeting 

of future health interventions in the 

GTTS communities

1.b.1 Deliver two healthy eating projects in 

Bordon through Radian: 'Food 

Academy' and 'Good Grub Club' to 

support young people and families to 

cook healthier meals

2020/21 

financial year

EHDC Community 

Team, Radian

Deliver the eating projects, 

review the projects to include the 

number of families/young people 

and participants confidence of 

cooking healthier meals 

Once reviewed if successful to 

commission across the district

1.b.2 Commission 'Healthy in Whitehill & 

Bordon' 2 year revenue grant using 

Healthy New Towns Fund

April 2020 

continuing for 

2 years

EHDC Community 

Team with 

external 

organisations

Commission and procure the 

project, establish a governance 

structure, agree the method to 

monitor  the projects and 

implement regular monitoring of 

the projects

Deliver and monitor the effectiveness of 

the project, to include to: reduce social 

isolation, increase physical activity, 

reduce obesity, reduce mental health 

issues (long-term indicators)

2.a.1 Develop Dementia Walks as part of 

Walking for Health and offer 

Dementia Friends training to existing 

Walk Leaders

Ongoing with 

first walk 

planned for 

June 2020

EHDC Community 

Team 

Deliver walks across the district, 

review attendance of walks, 

survey participants to assess 

health and wellbeing impact

Establish a baseline for number of 

people attending dementia walks  to 

increase the following year

2.a.2 Host an annual Living Well with 

Dementia Festival to promote 

activities and services 

May-20 EHDC Community 

Team, Dementia 

Friends

Deliver a successful festival, to 

include attendance by partner 

organisations offering services 

for people suffering with 

dementia, number of people with 

dementia and their carers 

attending 

Gain evidence from organisations and 

participants who attended to improve 

the festival next year

2.a.3 Write and promote a Dementia 

Directory to list activities and 

services available in the district

May-20 EHDC Community 

Team 

Complete the directory, agree a 

communications plan for the 

directory and distribution to 

include at the Dementia Festival

Published easy to read and accessible 

directory

This action plan outlines the projects that East Hampshire District Council will lead.  This is the first year of a 4 year Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy and by the very nature of the 

projects the full impact will be felt longer term.  

EHDC-led Action Plan 2020 - 2021 

Priority 2 - Supporting an Ageing Population 

Priority 1 - Delivering Physical and Mental Wellbeing 

2.a A Dementia-

friendly District

1.a Improving 

Mental 

Wellbeing

1.b Reducing 

obesity

P
age 35



2.b.1 Promote the Walking for Health 

scheme

Ongoing EHDC Community 

Team

Deliver walks across the district, 

review attendance of walks, 

survey participants to assess 

health and wellbeing impact

Establish a baseline for number of 

people attending dementia walks  to 

increase the following year

2.b.2 Promote the EHDC Disabled 

Facilities Grant (DFG), together with 

the Occupational Therapist.

Ongoing EHDC Private 

Sector Housing

Allocate the DFG to appropriate 

and eligible residents across the 

district

Number of residents able to stay in 

their homes for longer, to increase year 

on year
2.c.1 Continue to support, promote, and 

fund the community transport 'Call & 

Go' and 'Group Hire' schemes

2-year 

contract from 

April 2019-

March 2021

EHDC Community 

Team, HCC, 

Community First

Review and if appropriate extend 

the contract 

Increase of passengers by 1% per 

annum, increase average number of 

different users by 2% per annum, 98% 

of booking line hours achieved
2.c.2 Organise and deliver an 

engagement event to promote the 

Get Active website to local physical 

activity clubs and providers

Jun-20 EHDC Community 

Team, Energise 

Me

Deliver the event, establish a 

database of local clubs/providers 

for the district, devise a 

communications plan to 

advertise the website

Increase the number of hits on the 

website from East Hampshire 

residents, increase in the number of 

participants in physical activity clubs

2.c.3 Establish a carers' focus group to 

understand the needs of carers and 

the services required to improve 

their welfare and wellbeing

2020/21 

financial year

EHDC Community 

Team, The 

Princess Royal 

Trust, Community 

First, HCC

Work with partners to identify 

carers to participate in focus 

group, identify gaps in support, 

propose evidence-based 

projects to fill gaps, utilise Lets 

Talk at the Dementia Festival to 

seek volunteers for the focus 

group

EHDC to deliver or commission 

relevant, evidence based projects for 

future years

3.a.1 Award Supporting Communities 

Fund and non-specified Section 106 

funding to organisations that meet 

key Welfare and Wellbeing priorities 

as well as other key EHDC strategic 

priorities

SCF open 

April-May 

2020, grants 

awarded July 

2020; S106 

grant open on 

a rolling basis

EHDC Community 

Team

Process, evaluate and award 

grants and S106 monies, 

monitor the delivery of the 

projects

Delivery of projects/services across 

East Hants for 1- 3 years, deliver 

capital projects through S106 monies

3.a.2 The Local Plan's Infrastructure Plan 

will provide the evidence base

Started 

Autumn 2019, 

ongoing

EHDC Planning 

Policy

Completed Community Facility 

Audit

Audit to inform the targeting of new 

infrastructure delivery to meet 

community need, all residents able to 

access community facilities
3.a.3 Deliver a project to plant trees 

across East Hampshire

2021 EHDC multi task 

team

Establish funding to deliver 

trees, identify relevant partners 

to assist in the project

Trees planted to assist in the natural 

environment and enjoyment of East 

Hampshire
3.a.4 To require a Health Impact 

Assessment (HIA) on all major 

development sites as part of the 

emerging Local Plan

Dec-21 EHDC Planning 

Policy, Community 

Team

Local Plan adopted, HIA 

required to support planning 

applications for all major 

developments

HIA completed for specific major 

development sites to then be monitored

3.a Access to 

Quality 

Community 

Infrastructure to 

Include Open 

and Green 

Spaces

2.b Encouraging 

Resilience and 

Independence

2.c Reduce Social 

Isolation

Priority 3 - Improving Community Connectivity and Sense of Place

P
age 36



3.b Prevent 

Homelessness 

Across the 

District and 

Facilitate 

Access to a 

Decent Home

3.b.1 Ensure staff and relevant agencies 

understand their responsibilities in 

relation to Duty to Refer (DTR)

February 2020 

and then 

ongoing

EHDC Housing DTR process fully understood by 

relevant agencies, procedure 

established to ensure a speedy 

and efficient response to DTR 

referrals 

Partner agencies clear on their 

responsibilities and trained on DTR and 

how to refer, KPI measures to facilitate 

performance monitoring, See 

Homelessness and Rough Sleepers 

Strategy for more information

P
age 37



No. Objective No. What we will do By when Who will deliver this? Milestones Target/Outcome

1.a.4 Work in partnership with the A31 

PCN, East Hants PCN, and 

Radian Social Prescribers

March 2020-

2021

PCNs, Radian, EHDC 

Community Team

Host East Hants PCN Social 

Prescribers at Penns Place, solely 

fund 1 Social Prescriber Officer 

focusing on young people, jointly 

fund Elemental IT package, jointly 

monitor the effectiveness of the 

Social Prescribers

Number of clients referred, Health 

Impact and Client Journey reports will 

be monitored on a monthly basis to 

measure the impact of the Social 

Prescribers using the Elemental 

software

1.a.5 Establish a 'First Contact 

Practitioner' (FCP) scheme within 

PCNs to deliver NHS Englands' 

'Getting It Right First Time' 

April 2020 

and then 

ongoing

PCNs 5 FCPs in the East Hants PCN, 

FCP lead to develop KPI 

monitoring strategy and public 

awareness campaign

FCPs able to relieve pressure on GP 

demand surplus, reduction in MSK-

related GP appointments (long-term)

1.a.6 Roll out Sports Ambassador 

programme across the district to 

provide Mental Health 

Ambassadors in sports clubs and 

leisure centres

September 

2020-2023

East Hampshire & 

Havant MIND, 

Everyone Active, 

EHDC Community 

Team

10 clubs per year to establish 

Sports Ambassadors, MIND to 

produce case studies and conduct 

wellbeing surveys, detailed 

monitoring through Supporting 

Communities Fund framework

Increase in the number of Sports 

Ambassadors across the district

1.a.7 Pilot 'Social Crisis' project to 

support patients  with low-level 

mental health issues in Alton and 

Bordon

January 2020-

April 2021

East Hampshire & 

Havant MIND, PCNs

Measure the impact of the project 

using Recovery Star self-

monitoring tool, evaluate at regular 

intervals

Number of clients referred, evaluate 

impact and potential to commission 

the project across the district

1.a.8 Pilot 'Energise and Relax' GP 

mental health referral programme 

3 courses 

running 

between 

February-

October 2020

Everyone Active, North 

Hants CCG

Deliver 3 courses and review the 

success of pilot

Increase in up take of exercise 

referral, potential to commission the 

project across the district

1.a.9 Work with CAEH to provide regular 

debt advice sessions remotely

April 2020 

and then 

ongoing

CAEH, EHDC CAEH to provide advisors, use 

EHDC and CAEH data to target 

advice services to areas in the 

most need, evaluate pilot for 

impact

Residents able to manage debt, for 

example through successful benefit 

claim

1.b.3 Commission a primary and 

secondary schools health 

questionnaire

District report 

published by 

May 2020

Public Health 

Hampshire, local 

schools

Devise a health questionnaire 

report for districts and individual 

schools, agree which schools to 

target/pilot

Commission projects/services as 

evidence illustrates

1.b.4 Promote the Hampshire Weight 

Watchers free 3 month scheme

February-

May 2020

Hampshire County 

Council

Raise public and GP awareness to 

increase referrals through a 

communications plan

HCC evaluation of individual short-

term impact

Partner-led Action Plan 2020 - 2021 
This action plan outlines the projects that our partners will lead.  This is the first year of a 4 year Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy and by the very nature of the projects the full 

impact will be felt longer term.  

Priority 1 - Delivering Physical and Mental Wellbeing

1.a Improving 

Mental 

Wellbeing

1.b Reducing 

Obesity 

P
age 38



1.c.1 Set up Satellite Clubs targeting 

inactive young people in East 

Hampshire 

Mar-21 Energise Me, EHDC 

Community Team

Target in active young people 

through Get Activ8d, each club 

lasts for a minimum of 12 weeks, 

completion of an evaluation of each 

club

Increase and sustain higher levels of 

physical activity among young 

participants

1.c.2 Provide training opportunities for 

GPs and health professionals on 

the benefits of physical activity 

using the Clinical Champion 

Training

May 2020 

and then 

ongoing

Public Health 

Hampshire, PCNs, 

Energise Me

Deliver courses (12 clinicians 

needed for one course) 

Increased GP awareness , increase 

in exercise referrals

1.c.3 Develop and deliver a programme 

of community activities for people 

with disabilities

Mar-21 Everyone Active, 

EHDC Community 

Team

Consult with Disability Action 

Groups and leisure/sport providers 

to optimise the targeting and 

content of the programme, 

measure leisure centre attendance 

data for people with disabilities 

before and after programme 

delivery

Increase in take up of classes in 

people with a disability

1.c.4 Promote the East Hants Leisure 

Card offering subsidised access to 

all three leisure centres

April 2020 

and then 

ongoing

Everyone Active, 

EHDC Community 

Team, EHDC 

Communications

Establish a base line for the 

subsidised card user, devise a 

marketing plan to increase this 

base line

Increase in residents participating in 

physical activity

1.c.5 Optimise the delivery of a GP 

Referral scheme in the leisure 

centres and Alton Cardiac Rehab 

Unit

February 

2020 and 

then ongoing

Everyone Active, 

ACRU, PCNs

Consult with partners and patients 

on barriers to referrals, work in 

partnership to remove those 

barriers

Increase in residents referred through 

the scheme

2.a.4 Promote and support dementia-

focused activities in the district 

(e.g. Petersfield Choir)

Ongoing Dementia Friends, 

EHDC Community 

Team, EHDC 

Communications

Devise a Communications Plan to 

promote the activities available, 

work in partnership to identify local 

dementia focused activities, 

establish a baseline

Increase in residents with dementia 

participating in activities in the 

community

2.a.5 Ensure that all three leisure 

centres have completed the 

Dementia Friends training

Financial 

year 2020/21

Everyone Active, 

Dementia Friends, 

EHDC Community 

Team

Establish a base line for the 

training

80% of all leisure centre staff are 

trained and equipped to provide a 

service for people with dementia

2.b.3 Promote Steady & Strong and 

Chairobics programmes

Ongoing Hampshire County 

Council Falls 

Prevention Team, 

EHDC 

Communications

Devise a Communications Plan to 

promote this project

Increase in residents taking part in 

the project

2.b.4 Provide a STEER (Safety Through 

Education and Exercise for 

Resilience) pilot and deliver four 

courses across the district

First course 

December 

2020

Hampshire Fire and 

Rescue Service

Feedback after each 12-week 

course from participants, deliver 4 

courses, establish the benefits from 

the participants

Evaluate the benefit to residents, 

consider commissioning the projects 

across the district

2.c.4 Promote Connect to Support 

Hampshire's online directory 

internally and externally

Ongoing CTSH, EHDC 

Community Team, 

EHDC 

Communications

Devise a Communications Plan to 

promote the service

Increase in the number of hits 

accessing the directory from East 

Hampshire

Priority 2 - Supporting an Ageing Population

1.c Increasing 

Physical Activity

2.a A Dementia-

friendly District

Encouraging 

Resilience and 

Independence

2.b

2.c Reduce Social 

Isolation

P
age 39



2.c.5 Promote the Get Active website 

and encourage sports and 

exercise clubs to register

Ongoing Energise Me, EHDC 

Community Team

Energise Me to deliver targeted 

social media campaigns, to 

consider a student placement to 

engage with clubs to populate the 

website

Increase in the number of hits 

accessing the directory from East 

Hampshire, increase in the number of 

clubs on the directory from East 

Hampshire

3.a.5 Ensure that all three leisure 

centres are accessible, including 

Changing Places facilities, hoist 

access to the swimming pool, and 

IFI accessible gym equipment

Mar-21 Everyone Active Carry out any works required to 

compile with IFI

Increase the number of disabled 

users by 2%

3.a.6 Pilot the 'Mapping for Change' tool 

in Bordon (using Healthy New 

Towns fund)

Pilot starting 

December 

2020

Whitehill & Bordon 

Community Trust, 

Disability Action Group, 

EHDC Community 

Team

Develop a web based mapping 

tool, engage with the community to 

populate the web based tool, 

devise a communications plan

Published web based, user friendly 

tool for people with disabilities to 

access community facilities

3.b Prevent 

Homelessness 

Across the 

District and 

Facilitate 

Access to a 

Decent Home

3.b.2 Target social and community 

activities at social housing 

residents and those at risk of 

homelessness

Starting 

December 

2020

Radian, Two Saints, 

EHDC Housing, EHDC 

Community Team

EHDC Housing and Community 

Teams to meet with Radian and 

Two Saints to consider targeting 

methods and nature of 

interventions

Greater awareness of those residents 

at risk of homelessness, and 

prevention of homelessness, see the 

Homelessness and Rough Sleepers 

Strategy for more details.

Priority 3 - Improving Community Connectivity and Sense of Place

2.c Reduce Social 

Isolation

3.a Access to 

Quality 

Community 

Infrastructure to 

Include Open 

and Green 

Spaces

P
age 40



Appendix 2 – Supporting Documents, Partners and Key Stakeholders, Relevant 

legislation, Other Sources 

At the National level:   

 Putting Health into Place (PHIP)1 

 School Sport and Activity Action Plan2 

 A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment3 

 The Five-Year Forward View for Mental Health4 

 NHS Long Term Plan5 

 Prevention is Better Than Cure6 

 Carers Action Plan7 

 Social Prescribing and Community-Based Support8 

 The Marmot Review: Fair Society, Healthy Lives9 

 Sport England – Towards an Active Nation10 

At County level:   

 Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-202411 

 Children and Young People’s Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Needs 
Assessment12 

 Hampshire Physical Activity Strategy13 

 Towards a Healthier Hampshire: A Strategy for Improving the Public’s Health14 

                                                           
1 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/phip-executive-summary.pdf  
2 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/848082/Scho
ol_sport_and_activity_action_plan.pdf  
3 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-
year-environment-plan.pdf  
4 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf  
5 https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/nhs-long-term-plan-version-1.2.pdf  
6 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/753688/Prev
ention_is_better_than_cure_5-11.pdf  
7 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/713781/care
rs-action-plan-2018-2020.pdf  
8 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/social-prescribing-community-based-support-
summary-guide.pdf  
9 https://www.local.gov.uk/marmot-review-report-fair-society-healthy-lives  
10 https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/sport-england-towards-an-
active-nation.pdf  
11 http://democracy.hants.gov.uk/documents/s27279/JHWB%20Strategy%20draft%20for%20consultation.pdf  
12 https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/CYPEmotionalWellbeingandMentalHealthNeedsAssessment.pdf  
13 https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/HampshirePhysicalActivityStrategy2018-21.pdf  
14 https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-
health/TowardsahealthierHampshireastrategyforimprovingthepublicshealth2016-2021.pdf  

Page 41

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/phip-executive-summary.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/848082/School_sport_and_activity_action_plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/848082/School_sport_and_activity_action_plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/nhs-long-term-plan-version-1.2.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/753688/Prevention_is_better_than_cure_5-11.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/753688/Prevention_is_better_than_cure_5-11.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/713781/carers-action-plan-2018-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/713781/carers-action-plan-2018-2020.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/social-prescribing-community-based-support-summary-guide.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/social-prescribing-community-based-support-summary-guide.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/marmot-review-report-fair-society-healthy-lives
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/sport-england-towards-an-active-nation.pdf
https://sportengland-production-files.s3.eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/s3fs-public/sport-england-towards-an-active-nation.pdf
http://democracy.hants.gov.uk/documents/s27279/JHWB%20Strategy%20draft%20for%20consultation.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/CYPEmotionalWellbeingandMentalHealthNeedsAssessment.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/HampshirePhysicalActivityStrategy2018-21.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/TowardsahealthierHampshireastrategyforimprovingthepublicshealth2016-2021.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/TowardsahealthierHampshireastrategyforimprovingthepublicshealth2016-2021.pdf


 Hampshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment15 

 Energise Me – Hampshire and IOW Physical Activity Strategy 2017-202116 

At district/local level:   

 EHDC Corporate Strategy  

 EHDC Local Plan  

 EHDC Enhance East Hampshire Place-Making Strategy 2019-2036 

 EHDC Energy Strategy 2014-2019 (in lieu of Climate Change Strategy) 

 EHDC Business Strategy 2015-2020 

 EHDC Residents’ Survey 2018 

 EHDC Green Infrastructure Plan   

 EHDC Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan  

 EHDC Affordable Housing Statement 2018-2020   

 EHDC Homelessness and Rough Sleepers Strategy and Action Plan 2019-2024  

 EHDC Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-2026  

 EHDC Organisational Development Strategy 2018-2021  

 Everyone Active Sports Development Plan   

 South Downs Local Plan 2014-2033  

 Alton Town Council Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020  

Partners and Key Stakeholders  

Citizens Advice East Hampshire hold the contract for Universal Credit Support and 
provide budgeting and debt advice. We work in partnership to provide a clear pathway 
for advice and assistance.   

Bordon and Liphook Charities provide financial help and support for residents 
threatened with homelessness.   

SAAFA offer financial and emotional support to families of service personnel.   

Salvation Army are a religious charity operating in the district offering homelessness, 
employment, and family support, as well as a lunch club and open-door listening 
service, among other provisions. They also run the PACT foodbank daily.   

Two Saints hold the Social Inclusion contract funded by Hampshire County Council. 
They provide accommodation and drop-in services throughout the district. They work 
with around 600 cases per year. They also provide outreach services to those rough 
sleeping and will assist with approaches to the Housing Options & Advice Team for 
further assistance.   

                                                           
15 https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/publichealth/jsna  
16 https://www.energiseme.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Hampshire-and-Isle-of-Wight-Physical-Activity-
Strategy-2017-21-January-2018.pdf  

Page 42

https://www.hants.gov.uk/socialcareandhealth/publichealth/jsna
https://www.energiseme.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Hampshire-and-Isle-of-Wight-Physical-Activity-Strategy-2017-21-January-2018.pdf
https://www.energiseme.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/Hampshire-and-Isle-of-Wight-Physical-Activity-Strategy-2017-21-January-2018.pdf


Community First provides support for people looking to return to work, including 
confidence building, volunteering and work experience through its Positive Pathways 
program.   

Adult Services (Hampshire County Council) work alongside the Council and have a 
statutory obligation to safeguard and promote the welfare of vulnerable people. This 
includes the provision of extra care accommodation for older people and technology to 
help maintain their independence at home.   

Age UK provides advice and support at local level and offers a dedicated advice line, a 
befriending service and comprehensive advice and sign-posting services aimed at 
making living at home more manageable for older people.   

Community Mental Health Teams (Hampshire County Council) provide the statutory 
duty under the Care Act 2014 to carry out assessments and can make referrals to 
Supported Accommodation within the district. The “Connect to Support Hampshire” 
website provide links to other support agencies.   

Connect to Support Hampshire is a community signposting website and app set up by 
Hampshire County Council as a resource for residents and sign posters to find support 
services in Hampshire, including East Hampshire.   

Radian is a housing association in Hampshire focused on providing affordable housing, 
infrastructure, and community for its residents.   

Havant and East Hants MIND are a mental health charity operating in the district who 
provide mental health and wellbeing support as well as training courses and research.   

Home Start Butser are the local branch of the UK’s leading family support charity. 
They offer help, friendship, support, and advice for parents with young children in East 
Hampshire.   

The King’s Arms is a young people’s charity operating mainly in and 
around Petersfield and Alton offering youth clubs and activities for different age groups 
and levels of need.   

East Hampshire PCN covers a patient cluster of 9 GP Practices with a total of 67,000 
patients and is the largest PCN in Hampshire.   

A31 PCN covers four GP Practices in the North West of the district in Alton and the 
surrounding villages and serves 31,700 patients. The A31 PCN has announced plans to 
appoint 1 x social prescriber, with additional support from British Red Cross, through 
their ‘Connector Service’ (but funded directly by NH CCG & HCC).   

Everyone Active hold the leisure contract for East Hampshire and run the leisure 
centres in Petersfield (Taro), Alton, and Mill Chase.  

Page 43



Energise Me are a Hampshire-based sport and exercise charity funded through Sport 
England. They provide funding and run the Get Active web directory.  

Public Health Hampshire (Hampshire County Council) have the statutory duty for 

health and provide a link between the two tiers of local government health and wellbeing 

initiatives.  

Town/Parish Councils  

 

Relevant legislation  

 Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012  

 Homelessness Reduction Act 2017  

Other sources  

https://whatworkswellbeing.org/product/measuring-wellbeing-inequality-in-britain/ 
(accessed 04/02/2020) p.4. 

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.37%20District%20Councils%2
0Report_05_WEB_1.pdf (accessed 04/02/2020). 

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.37%20District%20Councils%2
0Report_05_WEB_1.pdf (accessed 04/02/2020). 

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/EHDC%20Brexit%20position
%20statement.pdf. 

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/energy-strategy (accessed 28/01/20). 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/phip-executive-summary.pdf 
p.22 (accessed 17/01/20). 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/putting-health-into-place-
v4.pdf (accessed 04/02/2020). 

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/place%20making%20strateg
y%20220120.pdf (accessed 05/02/2020). 

https://www.tnlcommunityfund.org.uk/media/Bringing-people-together_how-community-
action-can-tackle-loneliness-and-social-isolation.pdf?mtime=20190701084743; The Big 
Impact (undated) [online]. Available at: edenprojectcommunities.com/the-bigimpact 
(accessed 25 Feb 2019). 

Page 44

https://whatworkswellbeing.org/product/measuring-wellbeing-inequality-in-britain/
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.37%20District%20Councils%20Report_05_WEB_1.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.37%20District%20Councils%20Report_05_WEB_1.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.37%20District%20Councils%20Report_05_WEB_1.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/22.37%20District%20Councils%20Report_05_WEB_1.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/EHDC%20Brexit%20position%20statement.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/EHDC%20Brexit%20position%20statement.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/energy-strategy
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/phip-executive-summary.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/putting-health-into-place-v4.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/putting-health-into-place-v4.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/place%20making%20strategy%20220120.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/place%20making%20strategy%20220120.pdf
https://www.tnlcommunityfund.org.uk/media/Bringing-people-together_how-community-action-can-tackle-loneliness-and-social-isolation.pdf?mtime=20190701084743
https://www.tnlcommunityfund.org.uk/media/Bringing-people-together_how-community-action-can-tackle-loneliness-and-social-isolation.pdf?mtime=20190701084743


https://ruralengland.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/Final-report-Loneliness-and-
Isolation.pdf (accessed 06/02/2020). 

https://www.independent.co.uk/environment/nature-prescriptions-nhs-mental-health-
nature-wellbeing-a9148751.html (accessed 06/02/2020). 

file://ehtvpspfap02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/Home$/NichollsL/Documents/NECR
204_edition_1.pdf (accessed 06/02/2020). 

http://data.ageuk.org.uk/loneliness-maps/england-2016/east%20hampshire/ (accessed 
03/02/20). 

UK Finance, Sept 2018. 

Department for Business, Energy, and Industrial Strategy, 2017. 

OCSI Local Insight, East Hampshire, 2018. 

Census 2011. 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing; 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachmen
t_data/file/685903/The_Green_Book.pdf (p.16). 

Dahlgren and Whitehead, 1991. 

https://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/LLN-2019-
0003#fullreport (accessed 05/02/2020). 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/physical-activity-applying-all-our-
health/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health (accessed 04/02/20). 

Energise Me East Hants SAE Inactivity. 

PHE – Public Health Outcomes Framework. 

OCSI Local Insight 2020. 

PHE Fingertips Local Authority Health Profiles (2018). 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deat
hs/articles/whoismostatriskofsuicide/2017-09-07 (accessed 03/02/20). 

https://media.samaritans.org/documents/Samaritans_Dying_from_inequality_report_-
_summary.pdf (accessed 03/02/20). 

Page 45

https://ruralengland.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/Final-report-Loneliness-and-Isolation.pdf
https://ruralengland.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/04/Final-report-Loneliness-and-Isolation.pdf
https://www.independent.co.uk/environment/nature-prescriptions-nhs-mental-health-nature-wellbeing-a9148751.html
https://www.independent.co.uk/environment/nature-prescriptions-nhs-mental-health-nature-wellbeing-a9148751.html
file://///ehtvpspfap02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/Home$/NichollsL/Documents/NECR204_edition_1.pdf
file://///ehtvpspfap02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/Home$/NichollsL/Documents/NECR204_edition_1.pdf
http://data.ageuk.org.uk/loneliness-maps/england-2016/east%20hampshire/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/685903/The_Green_Book.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/685903/The_Green_Book.pdf
https://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/LLN-2019-0003#fullreport
https://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/LLN-2019-0003#fullreport
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health/physical-activity-applying-all-our-health
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/whoismostatriskofsuicide/2017-09-07
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/articles/whoismostatriskofsuicide/2017-09-07
https://media.samaritans.org/documents/Samaritans_Dying_from_inequality_report_-_summary.pdf
https://media.samaritans.org/documents/Samaritans_Dying_from_inequality_report_-_summary.pdf


https://www.samaritans.org/about-samaritans/research-policy/suicide-facts-and-figures/ 
(accessed 03/02/20). 

https://www.ageuk.org.uk/Documents/EN-GB/For-
professionals/Policy/agenda_for_later_life_2015_full_report.pdf?dtrk=true (accessed 
04/02/20). 

Carers UK's State of Caring 2018 Survey. 

https://carers.org/key-facts-about-carers-and-people-they-care. 

Carers UK (2017) The world shrinks: Carer loneliness. 

Carers UK (2016) Missing out: The identification challenge 

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/1.39_Health%20in%20rural%20ar
eas_WEB.pdf (accessed 06/02/2020). 

https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/social-policy/families-social-services/dementia-
age-and-deprivation-differences/ (accessed 05/02/2020). 

Trussell Trust. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/sub-regional-fuel-poverty-data-2019 
(accessed 05/02/2020). 

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/mental-health/MHWBISummary-
EastHampshire.pdf (accessed 06/02/2020). 

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/ethnicity/articles
/whatdoesthe2011censustellusaboutthecharacteristicsofgypsyoririshtravellersinengland
andwales/2014-01-21 (accessed 07/02/2020). 

https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-
select/women-and-equalities-committee/news-parliament-2017/grt-tackling-inequalities-
report-published-17-19/ (accessed 05/02/2020). 

EHDC Environmental Health figures 

 

 

Page 46

https://www.samaritans.org/about-samaritans/research-policy/suicide-facts-and-figures/
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/Documents/EN-GB/For-professionals/Policy/agenda_for_later_life_2015_full_report.pdf?dtrk=true
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/Documents/EN-GB/For-professionals/Policy/agenda_for_later_life_2015_full_report.pdf?dtrk=true
https://carers.org/key-facts-about-carers-and-people-they-care
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/1.39_Health%20in%20rural%20areas_WEB.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/1.39_Health%20in%20rural%20areas_WEB.pdf
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/social-policy/families-social-services/dementia-age-and-deprivation-differences/
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/social-policy/families-social-services/dementia-age-and-deprivation-differences/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/sub-regional-fuel-poverty-data-2019
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/mental-health/MHWBISummary-EastHampshire.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/public-health/mental-health/MHWBISummary-EastHampshire.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/ethnicity/articles/whatdoesthe2011censustellusaboutthecharacteristicsofgypsyoririshtravellersinenglandandwales/2014-01-21
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/ethnicity/articles/whatdoesthe2011censustellusaboutthecharacteristicsofgypsyoririshtravellersinenglandandwales/2014-01-21
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/ethnicity/articles/whatdoesthe2011censustellusaboutthecharacteristicsofgypsyoririshtravellersinenglandandwales/2014-01-21
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/women-and-equalities-committee/news-parliament-2017/grt-tackling-inequalities-report-published-17-19/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/women-and-equalities-committee/news-parliament-2017/grt-tackling-inequalities-report-published-17-19/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/women-and-equalities-committee/news-parliament-2017/grt-tackling-inequalities-report-published-17-19/


Appendix 3 – Where We Are Now: Key Evidence Comparisons 

 

Indicator England East Hampshire 

Dependency ratio 0.59 0.7 

Emergency hospital admissions for self-harm 185.5 205.6 

Personal debt per head £687.20 £760 

Residential mortgage debt per head £38,156.30 £53,936.40 

SME lending debt per head £1,490.70 £2,011.90 

CO2 emissions per resident 5.1 tonnes 5.4 tonnes 

Average house price £299,142 £425,928 

House price affordability gap (difference 
between av. house price and 4.5x av. annual 
earnings)  £42,272 £132,181 

Excess winter deaths 30% 30% 

Adults with excess weight 62% 65% 

Reception pupils with excess weight 22% 22% 

Mental health related benefits 3% 2% 

Suicide rate 9.6 9.2 

Life expectancy 81 83 

Unpaid carers 10.2% 10.1% 

Physical inactivity  25% 20% 

Physically active adults 63% 68% 

Year 6 pupils with excess weight 34% 28% 

Households with no car 25.8% 11.2% 

Households living in 'Fuel Poverty'  10.9% 7.2% 

Children in poverty 17% 8.1% 

Life expectancy inequality gap 8.5 2.7 

Healthy life expectancy 64 69.5 

Limiting long-term illness 17.6% 14.9% 

Healthy eating 28.7% 30.8% 

Annual household income £42,184 £53,571 

   
Sources:  

PHE Fingertips Local Health Profiles  

OCSI Local Insight East Hampshire Report 2020  

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 
Council 13 August 2020 
 
DIGITAL STRATEGY 2020-2024 
 
Susan Parker - Head of Programmes, Redesign & Quality 
 
Portfolio:   
 
Portfolio Holder for Governance and Legal - Cllr Nick Drew 

Head of Service: Susan Parker 
 
Director: Lydia Morrison 
 
Report No: EHCL/032/2020 
 
Key Decision: Yes  
 

 
1.0  Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. The approval of the Digital Strategy for East Hampshire District Council 
 

2.0  Recommendation  
 
2.1    That the Council adopts the Digital Strategy 2020-2024. 
 
3.0  Executive Summary  

 
3.1 The strategy lays out a number of digital transformation guidelines to achieve 

transformation to 2024, which will remain flexible to the changing and fast-
paced technological and customer service landscape. 

 
3.2 Building on our Customer Insight, redesign will be evidence-driven to deliver 

improvements to the customer journey through efficient and simple design 
that also builds trust in our online service offerings. 

  
3.3 The strategy also adopts a ‘Cloud First’ approach, moving to decentralise our 

infrastructure to more modern technologies, increasing reliability and lowering 
cost. Through better designed solutions we will also create a flexible and 
responsive workforce, with a decreased dependency on fixed workspace as 
part of a ‘paper-lite’ environment. A Digital Mindset to promote the confidence 
to self-serve and self-fix will ensure that modern ways of working can be 
utilised to full effect. 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

3.4 Our willingness to innovate will continue and our commitment to collaborate 
with common-value partners to harness new technologies and ideas to 
transform and experience shared benefits will enable the pursuit of funding 
opportunities to supplement our business cases. 

 
3.5 Pragmatism will be a watchword as digital transformation requires investment, 

and modelling must reflect that investment can save, having a financial return 
as well as a social one. 

 
3.6 We will follow our Commitment to the Local Digital Declaration to take our 

part in fixing the plumbing across the public sector, employing the 
‘Technology Code of Practice’ in system implementation. 

 
3.7 While we redesign, we also acknowledge that we have customers that that 

are not capable to operate digitally, and that age-related health conditions will 
ensure that this will always be the case. Our approach to customer access 
will ensure that the shift towards digital design takes into account how 
customer-facing services should operate to ensure no-one is left behind.  

 
3.8 Additionally we will continue to work with organisations such as the National 

Crime Agency to ensure proactive plans are in place to provide advice and 
support to residents to manage the risk of cyber-crime. 

 
3.9 The delivery of this strategy will be co-ordinated through the wider 

transformation objectives of the Council. 
 
 
4.0 Budgetary Implications 

 
4.1 The Digital Strategy is entirely business case and evidence-based driven and 

as such, resources will be considered on a case-by-case basis. A combined 
fund of £300k in Corporate Planning Reserve and £256k Capital receipts 
have been ring-fenced for delivery, subject to business case approval. 

 
4.2 The council will also pursue national transformation funding opportunities 

where available to supplement business cases. We will seek to share costs 
with partners, ROI from released costs, undertake sound procurement and 
adhere to the Finance Strategy (MTFS). 

 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and     

Directorate Business Plan/s 
 

5.1 The Digital Strategy is one of the main enablers to deliver the theme of 
Sustainable Council as defined in the corporate strategy for the Council. 

 
6.0     Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 

 
6.1. A piecemeal approach could be adopted to deliver projects on an individual 

basis. However, this is highly likely to be more costly and dependencies 
across systems may be overlooked which will limit the transformation 
opportunities for the Council. 

 

Page 50

https://localdigital.gov.uk/declaration/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/technology-code-of-practice/technology-code-of-practice


3 
 

7.0 Resource Implications 
 
7.1. Capita are our 3rd Party ICT provider and certain initiatives will require their 

resources. 
 

8.0    Legal Implications 
 

8.1. None.  
 
9. Risks 

 
9.1 As implementation progresses the following risk factors will require mitigation: 

 Capita resources 

 Change management – skills and confidence 

 Health & safety considerations 

 Competitive funding environment 

 IT business as usual service 
 

10.0 Consultation 
 
10.1. The IT User Group, Executive Board and Cabinet have been consulted on 

the development of this strategy.  
 

11. Communication 
 

11.1. Communication plans will be managed through the wider transformation 
objectives of the Council. 

 
12. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Digital Strategy 2020-2024  
 

 
Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: David Brown 
S151 Officer: Lydia Morrison 
Director: Lydia Morrison 
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Nick Drew 
 

     
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



V1 

 

(1) 

 

 

 

 

Havant Borough Council and East Hampshire District Council 
 

DIGITAL STRATEGY 2020-2024 
 

 

 

1. Executive Summary ..................................................................................................... 2 

2. An Introduction to Digital .............................................................................................. 3 

2.1. Drivers for Digital ..................................................................................................... 3 

3. Our Digital Vision — The Digital Transformation Design Principles ............................................. 4 

4. Our Digital Starting Point in 2019 ..................................................................................... 6 

4.1. The Role of the Core IT Service .................................................................................... 7 

4.2. Our Customers in 2019 ............................................................................................... 8 

5. Digital Delivery to 2024................................................................................................. 9 

5.1. Themes ................................................................................................................. 9 

5.2. Measuring the Outcomes .......................................................................................... 10 

5.3. Resources ............................................................................................................ 11 

6. A Digital Opportunity ................................................................................................. 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

August 2020 

   

  

Page 53



V1 

 

(2) 

 

1. Executive Summary 

The aim of this strategy:  

To create a ‘digital council’ with digitally ‘savvy’ staff and councillors and services designed 
to be accessible and convenient for our customers.  
 
We are signed-up to the Local Digital Declaration. This is about us working with central 
government and other local authorities to:  
 

 Design services that best meet the needs of our residents. 

 Challenge the technology market to offer the flexible tools and services we need. 

 Protect residents’ privacy and security. 

 Deliver better value for money. 

 

Why do we need a digital strategy? 

Customers expect to do things online when it is convenient to them. They are used to 
operating in a 24/7 world when they access other services e.g. bank accounts.  
 
According to an Ofcom study, in 2018 72 per cent of us accessed the internet via our 
mobile phones.  
 
Our websites are growing as more customers expect to access their services online.  
Between 2017 and 2019 EHDC’s web traffic increased by 217,000 visits and HBC’s by 
180,000. 
 
Digital is becoming the norm in many areas of our lives. As councils we have committed to 
design our services in line with the needs of our own customers, as laid out in the 
Customer Access Policy. 
 

Our approach to creating a digital council can be summarised as: 

 Digital by default: if it can be done digitally then it should be. We will invest in our 

websites and our online channels to meet residents’ needs and then target our 

resources more effectively to help those who cannot access digital channels. 

 Customer first: using insight we will better understand our customers’ needs and 

design simple and effective services to meet them. 

 Invest in digital: if it makes customers’ lives easier and is cost effective (with a 

business case to demonstrate this) then we will invest to future-proof our systems. 

 Customer convenience: we will redesign services so they are convenient to our 

customers (I.e. available 24/7 - not just in office hours). 

Page 54



V1 

 

(3) 

 

 Council in the cloud: we will use cloud-based systems, where possible, to 

increase access, reliability and versatility. This will allow staff and councillors to 

work more flexibly. 

 Digital savvy: we will create a ‘digital mindset’ with staff and councillors so they are 

confident and able to use self-serve systems. 

 Collaborating: we will work with partners to embrace new technology, making our 

services more effective and efficient. 

 Pursue funding opportunities: we are already part of a joint local digital fund 

application to help local authorities work with customers to transform our services to 

become digital. 

 Digital environment: we are creating a ‘paper-lite’ environment to help reduce our 

carbon footprint and reduce fixed workspaces so we can work in a more flexible 

environment to meet customer needs. 

 Safe and secure: we will ensure our services are secure and compliant with data 

protection and other regulations. 

 

2. An Introduction to Digital 

‘Digital’ is a critical transformation tool for the councils and our customers. Digital is a way 

of ‘doing’ things. It looks to: 

 Unlock value. 

 Use current and new capabilities to deliver the best possible customer experience.  

 Establish a Digital mindset and tools that connect devices, data and people.  

 

Digital will create the conditions to provide dramatic improvements in service delivery; 

enable more transparent, customer-focused services; drive efficiencies and form part of 

wider council strategies, such as regeneration. 

 

2.1. Drivers for Digital 

We recognise that our customers expect more from our public services – for some time 

they have been living in a world where:  

 Use of social media is a given. 

 Data provides the opportunity for demand-led, evidence-based service design.  

 Smart technology, such as voice-activated personal assistants like Amazon’s Alexa 

sets high expectations around easy self-service and quick one-step fixes. 

Page 55



V1 

 

(4) 

 

 Customers increasingly expect services to be available 24/7. 

 Cloud-hosted platforms and software provide an opportunity to move away from 

costly, locally-hosted solutions towards better value, access and service reliability. 

 

Market research1 shows local government’s main ambitions are to optimise operations, 

improve the customer experience and to transform services. Conversely the top barriers to 

this are budget constraints, lack of digital agility and cultural issues. Unsurprisingly, this is 

comparable to our councils’ position and provides the backdrop to the formulation of our 

digital planning. 

 

Excellent service design, based around customer need and want, is one way to meet 

customer expectations. However, the most effective way of transforming our services is 

through harnessing existing and emerging technologies. This Digital Strategy will detail 

how this can be achieved. 

 

3. Our Digital Vision — The Digital Transformation Design 
Principles 

These 19 guiding principles will help the council achieve Digital transformation by 2024. 

The council will also remain flexible to the changing and fast-paced technological and 

customer service landscape. 

Digital Design: 

a) Digital by Default — If a process or service can be digitised, it should be. Each 

change should aim for the highest proportion of people to move from traditional to 

digital channels. Bearing in mind our resident demographics, we should be careful 

that Digital by Default does not create exclusion.  

b) Embedding Digital Design in the Transformation Framework — The councils 

will apply Digital as part of the established Transformation Framework 

(Appendix A). This will ensure data is shared across services and that outwardly 

‘Digital’ services are fully automated and not reliant on manual or unnecessary 

processes.  

c) Redesign via Customer Insight — Using evidence of our customers’ needs, 

service use and customer journeys, we will establish the current gaps in service 

provision and opportunities for improvement. Services and communications must be 

targeted to provide customers with the right content at the right time. We will identify 

easy ways for our customers to access services, while trying to reduce the cost of 

delivery. 

                                                 
1 https://www.pwc.co.uk/industries/government-public-sector/local-government/insights/local-state-we-are-in-

2019.html 

Page 56

https://www.pwc.co.uk/industries/government-public-sector/local-government/insights/local-state-we-are-in-2019.html
https://www.pwc.co.uk/industries/government-public-sector/local-government/insights/local-state-we-are-in-2019.html


V1 

 

(5) 

 

For our Customers: 

d) Efficient and Simple Design — Good digital design will provide tangible 

improvements to the customer’s experience and the efficient operation of the 

councils’ services. 

e) Enabling Customer Digital Access — Services will be designed around delivering 

what the customer needs when they need it. Shifting services away from office 

hours, face-to-face contact and telephone-based services toward automation will 

allow customers to use our services 24/7. 

f) Building Digital Trust — Customers will access secure systems to complete 

online transactions in a simple, user-friendly and privacy-friendly way. Where 

appropriate, we will collaborate and consult with our customers to ensure our offer 

is ‘just right’. 

g) Data as an Asset — Data will be analysed to inform decisions and build customer 

profiles. Data will be anonymised and shared with the community so it can be used 

in innovative ways. Data will be held securely and used in line with Data Protection 

legislation and GDPR and our data retention schedules.  

 

Via Systems & Infrastructure: 

h) Digital Security —Security will be paramount across our digital plans. We will work 

with our IT service providers, public sector partners and specialist agencies, such 

as the National Cyber Security Centre, to ensure arrangements are sound and 

proportionate to the level of threat. 

i) The Council in the Cloud — We will move to cloud-based technologies, which will 

lower costs and improve system access and reliability.  

j) Open, and Flexible Systems — When it comes to investment, systems will use 

open technical standards, be inter-operable and scalable. These will be steadfast 

procurement criteria for all new solutions. 

k) Digital Investment — Our application of Digital must be pragmatic, with decisions 

based on businesses cases and clear benefits to the customer and the councils. 

Digital change requires investment. The cost benefit analysis must reflect the fact 

that investment can save the council money. 

l) Follow our Commitment to the Local Digital Declaration — We will play our part 

in ‘fixing the national plumbing’ across the public sector, using the ‘Technology 

Code of Practice2’ when we implement our systems. 

  

                                                 
2 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/technology-code-of-practice/technology-code-of-practice 

Page 57

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/technology-code-of-practice/technology-code-of-practice


V1 

 

(6) 

 

Across the Organisation: 

m) A Digital Mindset — Culturally, our organisations must embrace Digital as the 

standard way of working. Staff should think digital-first and have the confidence to 

self-serve and self-fix. Excellent workspace design and IT tools can remove the 

reliance on traditional office desk arrangements.  

n) Funding Opportunities — The councils will pursue national funding opportunities. 

For example, the councils were recently part of a joint Local Digital Fund Application 

to help local authorities successfully implement transformation to digital systems.  

o) Digital Workstyles — Officers and councillors must have the equipment they 

require to work in a flexible manner and, as part of a ‘paper-lite’ environment, be 

less dependent on a fixed workspace. Digital will ensure that modern ways of 

working can be utilised to full effect to support individuals and teams. 

In Partnership: 

p) Innovation and Collaboration — The councils will continue to be ambitious and 

innovative with new technology. We will continue to be early adopters, reaching out 

to peers and networks to harness technologies and ideas, and to sharing the 

benefits with partners. 

q) Impact on Place — East Hampshire is building on the concept of Whitehill & 

Bordon as a ‘connected town’ and the regeneration strategies for that area. Similar 

opportunities will be pursued through the Regeneration Strategy of Havant Borough 

where we will harness existing and emerging technologies alongside our 

development and sector partners to enable our residents, visitors and our local 

businesses to work and live well in the Digital Age. 

r) Partnership – We will work with all our third-party providers and partners to deliver 

the shared infrastructure needed to create economies of scale and accommodate 

growth. 

s) Digital Responsibility — In the ‘Digital Age’ we must play our part in combatting 

the Climate Emergency that our energy-driven technologies and public services 

contribute towards. We will choose technology partners who share this sense of 

responsibility. 

 

4. Our Digital Starting Point in 2019 

In 2019/20 the council implemented a variety of flexible infrastructure projects. Working 

with our technology partners we are confident we understand our digital opportunities and 

our key strengths at an organisational and technical level. 

 

For example, East Hampshire has increased calls capacity and system stability to support 

the new waste contract, automating missed bin notifications. East Hampshire has also 

Page 58



V1 

 

(7) 

 

increased services available on its Customer Relationship Management system (CRM) to 

include abandoned vehicles and domestic nuisance complaints. Both councils have 

instigated video conferencing for all staff to avoid unnecessary travel, free up staff time 

and reduce our effect on the environment. Both councils have delivered cyber security 

training and have adopted digital skills assessments and training in the Organisational 

Development workstream. 

Through our in-house IT User Group and other stakeholder groups we have identified 

important requirements when developing plans for IT and digital delivery. These include: 

 

 Continuing staff and service IT engagement. 

 Flexible remote-working practices and support structures. 

 Increasing digital skills. 

 Removing system constraints. 

 Delivering reliable site infrastructure and connectivity (such as WiFi and secure print 

services). 

 

We have also started reviewing older legacy data, purging duplications and unnecessary 

information. We have taken advantage of other Office 365 applications and hope to move 

the councils’ intranet to SharePoint to deliver wider communications to staff. 

 

When redesigning our systems, we use focus groups, workshops and customer journey 

mapping to improve the customer experience. These insights help us develop specific 

solutions but also inform broader principles of digital delivery. This can be seen in our 

development of the new shared Building Control service customer portal. 

 

An independent review of the councils’ information management systems has presented 

recommendations about retention, accessibility and disposal of data. This will also shape 

our implementation of new systems, with research into the drivers for digital, encouraging 

our approach to managing platforms and software (software as a service)3. 

 

It is important to note that the Digital Strategy is designed to evolve, adapting to customer 

requirements and technological changes. In partnership with the councils’ Customer 

Access Policies it will reduce, or even remove, customer digital exclusion.  

 

4.1. The Role of the Core IT Service 

An important factor to be managed when setting and delivering this strategy is our service 

model ICT, which is delivered through a third party. This should not present a significant 

barrier, but there are constraints in the current model which will require review and 

management as part of the delivery of the strategy. Research has been carried out to 

                                                 
3 https://governmenttechnology.blog.gov.uk/2016/08/02/why-we-use-the-cloud-security-and-efficiency/ 

Page 59

https://governmenttechnology.blog.gov.uk/2016/08/02/why-we-use-the-cloud-security-and-efficiency/


V1 

 

(8) 

 

understand how the IT service can be adjusted to meet the needs of the council, and to 

understand Central Government strategies for IT delivery. 

4.2. Our Customers in 2019 

The Ofcom study ‘A Decade of Digital 

Dependency’4 shows a dramatic shift in 

behaviours, with older technologies rapidly 

replaced with new. The diagram on the right shows 

this decade of shift in our behaviours. 

 

In 2018, 72 per cent of us were accessing the 

internet via our mobile phones, spending almost 

2.5 hours online each day. We have catered for 

this change by ensuring council portals and 

websites operate across popular platforms. 

The growth of website usage alone is significant 

when we compare 2017/18 to 2018/19. At EHDC, 

the number of website visits has increased by more 

than 217,000 and the total number of pages viewed 

has increased by more than 240,000. At HBC there 

is a similar trend with the increases being more than 

180,000 and 300,000 respectively.  

The MyEastHants Portal, driven by the council’s investment in CRM technology, is equally 

impressive in terms of take-up, with more than 4,500 resident accounts created since 

January 2019. The portal offers a variety of services but fundamentally it offers users an 

automated one-stop self-service, including functions such as booking appointments and 

making payments. 

This example highlights how our digital services can fulfil customer need, and that take-up 

for new digital channels can be quick.  

The Customer Access Policy details the significant amount of work undertaken by the 

shared Insight Team in understanding our customers and the likelihood of them accessing 

services online. As a result, six different online personas have been identified. These 

range from Techy Terry and Confident Kate – those customers who will happily conduct all 

their business online – through to Offline Olive, who would really struggle under a wholly-

digitised service approach. 

                                                 
4 https://www.ofcom.org.uk/about-ofcom/latest/features-and-news/decade-of-digital-dependency 

Page 60

https://www.ofcom.org.uk/about-ofcom/latest/features-and-news/decade-of-digital-dependency


V1 

 

(9) 

 

The Tech Partnership has also carried out research into digital exclusion due to 

infrastructure or social factors. In East Hampshire there is a medium likelihood of digital 

exclusion due to 36 per cent of the district being rural. In total seven per cent of homes 

have under 10Mbsp broadband access. 4G coverage is another challenge in rural areas. 

In Havant the likelihood of overall digital exclusion is low, mainly due to better 

infrastructure, however a slightly higher percentage of people in Havant than East 

Hampshire have not been online within the last three months (over 9 per cent). 

Profile analysis will be used to establish why and how customers contact the councils and 
identify opportunities to include customers as we become Digital by Default. We must 
ensure there are policies in place to reduce the numbers of those who may be digitally 
excluded.  

The Customer Access Policy also considers those that are no longer capable of operating 
digitally. Our population profiles show an increased likelihood of age-related diseases that 
affect cognitive ability (Alzheimer’s, Dementia for example). 

The Customer Access Policy sets out how services should operate and how they will be 
guided by this Digital Strategy. 
 

5. Digital Delivery to 2024 

The Business Solutions Unit and the Digital Design Team will lead on the delivery of this 
strategy. However, success depends on all services across the councils buying in to the 
strategy and we will require strong ties with Organisational Development to achieve our 
digital mindset and cultural shift. 

The newly-created HIOWLA Digital Collaboration Group and direct engagement with the 

Cabinet Office and MCHLG will provide a professional network to inform and improve local 

delivery. 

 

5.1. Themes  

The delivery of this strategy is layered across the following themes.  

 Council in the Cloud 

 Technical Design 

 Security & Compliance 

 Contract Management 
 

Each of the council’s digital aims, projects and actions can be attributed to these 

connected themes which will be delivered via the Councils transformation goals. 

Page 61



V1 

 

(10) 

 

5.2. Measuring the Outcomes 

In line with the Councils strategic transformation goals, the implementation of the Digital 

Strategy will be measured against the delivery of the following outcomes, as described in 

the POTI (Processes, Organisation, Technology and Information) or blueprint below. 

PROCESS 

(and customer experience) 

 Digital by Default and Cloud First in 

action 

 Insight-driven and evidence-based 

improvements to the customer 

experience 

 Refreshed procurement criteria  

 Channel shift taking into account 

customer needs and digital self-service 

 Co-design with our residents 

 Business case driven decisions 

 

ORGANISATION 

(and financial sustainability) 

 Transferable skills base which 

enhances employee experience 

 Business case-based approach  

 Digitally-skilled workforce displaying a 

digital mindset. 

 

TECHNOLOGY 

(and assets) 

 Workstyle-driven IT solutions 

 Use the Technology Code of Practice  

 Majority of users are not dependent on 

fixed workspaces 

 IT arrangements are future proofed – 

scalable and inter-operable 

 IT Assets are rationalised 

 Evidence-based customer access 

models in use 

 Follow the 19 digital design guidelines  

 Automation workflow, AI (e.g. 

Chatbots, Workflow etc) is in use to 

redistribute resources to add value 

and/or complete complex work 

 Customers trust our online services 

 Security is monitored and adapted to 

resist new threats 

 Collaborative approach with partners 

 Place Shaping priorities seek out digital 

infrastructure (E.g. 5G infrastructure) 

INFORMATION 

(and data) 

 Compliance 

 Single version of the truth 

 Secure data sharing 

 A paper-lite working environment  

 Reduction in electronic file storage and 

rationalised secure data storage 

 Appropriate access to information sets 

 Data and intelligence used by all 

services to inform design 

Page 62



V1 

 

(11) 

 

5.3. Resources 

The Digital Strategy is entirely based on business cases and evidence. As such, resources 

for the projects will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

The councils will pursue national funding opportunities where available to supplement 

business cases. We will seek to share costs with partners, drive return on investment as a 

result of released costs, undertake sound procurement and adhere to the Finance Strategy 

(MTFS).  

Delivering these initiatives alongside staff’s day-to-day roles will require flexible, cross-

departmental working. It will be managed as part of the Councils transformation goals and 

supported by team leaders, line management and project managers. 

Heads of Service will ensure that annual Business Planning complements the digital 

transformation guidelines and that resourcing is considered as part of this process. As is 

the case with our dedicated Digital Design Team resource, there will always be a 

corporate balance between BAU requirement and project commitment. 

 

6. A Digital Opportunity 

The Digital Strategy will bind all forthcoming council transformation and digital projects and 

initiatives to our 19 design guidelines. It will ensure our continued commitment to the Local 

Digital declaration and Technology Code of Practice. 

As a result, the council will be less reliant on physical places and centralised system 

support. It will move both our colleagues and customers to a trusted way of working that is 

based on customer need and truly accessible 24/7. 

The strategy will deliver joint-working across the sector and will enable operational 

resilience through the formation of a digital mindset and workstyle. It will create flexible 

work practices and support to ensure we make the most of becoming a Council in the 

Cloud. 

  

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Digital Strategy – Glossary of Terms 

Term Definition 

24/7 Twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week 

5G Fifth Generation mobile technology 

AI or Artificial Intelligence Software that analyses data to produce 
decisions that humans would otherwise make. 

Automated missed bin notifications A telephone service at East Hampshire that 
will handle customers reporting missed bins 
based on them stating their postcode. 
Information is then checked against bin 
collection schedules to help complete the call 
prior to customer service involvement. 

Automated workflow A digital customer/service interaction that 
occurs independent of officers, but has stages 
of notification and progression by design. 

BSU Business Solutions Unit 

Chatbots Computer programmes pretending to be 
people following a script to help with online 
customer question and answers. 

Climate Emergency A Declaration of Climate Emergency is a 
resolution passed by a governing body. A 
national climate emergency has been declared 
by the UK Parliament in May 2019. 

Cloud-based technologies Technological services hosted online. They do 
not require 

Cloud first The Local Digital Declaration states that Local 
Authorities must first consider cloud-hosted 
services before considering on-site based 
services. 

Cloud-hosted platforms The hardware and operating environment of 
an on-site server but in an Internet-based 
datacentre. Often, this includes applications 
that let users create and manage their own 
accounts. 

Co-design The act of creating with stakeholders 
(business or customers) specifically within the 
design and development process to ensure 
the results meet their needs and are usable. 

CRM Customer Relationship Management systems 
are used to hold customer contact records. 

Cyber Security training User training to prevent malicious online 
software attacks and provide good security to 
protect council data. 

Digital by Default A design principle that states that any process 
that could be automated, should be. 

Digital Champions Network Digital Champions Network is an interactive 
website and service that provides learning, 
tools and a community to people become a 
Digital Champion: someone who can build 

Page 65



Term Definition 

their knowledge and confidence to empower 
others with the digital skills they need. 

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
as it applies in the UK. 

Inter-operable Systems that work together. 

Local Digital Fund Announced in July 2018 by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG), it aims to help local authorities 
implement the Local Digital Declaration by 
funding digital skills training and projects that 
address common local service challenges in 
common, reusable ways. 

Local Digital Declaration A shared ambition for the future of local public 
services written in 2018 by a collective of 45 
local authorities, sector bodies and 
government departments. It outlines goals and 
commitments, and invites all public sector and 
non-profit organisations to work to improve 
local services by signing the Declaration. 

National Cyber Security Centre A government service that supports the most 
critical organisations in the UK, the wider 
public sector, industry, SMEs as well as the 
general public, providing effective cyber 
incident response to minimise harm to the UK 
and help with recovery. 

Online personas A set of specially created character types that 
the would typically use online services. These 
groups have been given character names to 
help readers understand the main 
characteristic of that group. 

Open data Open data is the idea that some data should 
be freely available to everyone to use and 
republish as they wish, without restrictions. 
This could be anonymised user data or service 
data. The UK Government collects open data 
published by central government, local 
authorities and public bodies to help the public 
build products and services based on that 
data. 

Open technical standards "Open Standards" are standards made 
available to the general public and are 
developed (or approved) and maintained via a 
collaborative and consensus driven process. 
They facilitate easy communication with other 
systems and data exchange among different 
products or services and are intended for 
widespread adoption. 

Paper-lite An office environment that has reduced use of 
physical paper. It is acknowledged that 

Page 66



Term Definition 

statutory services cannot, at this time, be 
wholly paper-free. 

POTI – blueprint POTI stands for Processes, Organisation, 
Technology and Information. It is a 
management model for detailing a ‘blueprint’ 
or set of end goals to be achieved using the 
four group headings covering what the 
organisation will look like when all the projects 
are completed. 

Security Management Security management is the identification of an 
organisation's assets (including people, 
buildings, machines, systems and information 
assets), followed by the development, 
documentation, and implementation of policies 
and procedures for protecting these assets. 

Sharepoint A Microsoft programme for hosting information 
and documents online as part of Office365. 

Skype for Business (SfB) A Microsoft programme for video conferencing 
and online meetings. 

Software as a Service (SaaS) This is a complete end-to-end service 
available to purchase online that is wholly 
hosted online. Council examples include, 
Kahootz, Office365, AskHR. 

Teams A Microsoft programme for video conferencing 
and online meetings; chat; diary planning; 
softcall integration and sharepoint access. 

Technical Code of Practice A code of practice included in the Local Digital 
Declaration governing how design, build and 
buy technology. 

VC Video Conferencing 

Workstyle How staff work and use the councils’ IT 
provision and physical infrastructure of the 
council. 

Workstyle infrastructure The councils’ IT provision; services; buildings 
and equipment. 

Workflow A process that has stages of notification; 
authorisation and progression by design. 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NON EXEMPT  
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
COUNCIL 13 August 2020 
 
Emergency Scheme of Delegations                   
Author Chief Executive  
 
FOR RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
 
Leader of The Council Cllr Millard 
 
Report No: EHCL/035/2020 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1 To provide a formal record of the emergency delegation created to 
facilitate the response to the current coronavirus pandemic. This report 
complies with the resolution of Cabinet to provide this information to full 
Council at the first opportunity. 

 
2.0  Recommendation  
 
2.1  Note the emergency delegation.  
2.2 To confirm the emergency delegation continues until the cessation of 

the emergency or pandemic has been announced or 19 March 2021 
whichever is the sooner.    

 
3.0 Executive Summary  
 
3.1 The current Coronavirus has resulted in the cancellation of council 

meetings and committees. Additionally, any responsible officer under 
the scheme of delegation may be absent from work through illness or 
precautionary self-isolation. This is likely to continue during the 
recovery and track and trace phase. 

 
3.2 The report to Cabinet is appended for full council to understand the 

reasoning for the decision made on 19 March 2020 by Cabinet.  
 
4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

 
4.1 None 
 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 

Directorate Business Plan/s 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



 

 

5.1 None 
 
6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 
 
6.1 To maintain flexibility until March 2021 and to be used only in default of 

the established procedure.  
 
7.0 Resource Implications 
 
7.1 Financial Implications 

 
None 

 
7.2 Human Resources Implications 

 
None 

 
7.3 Information Governance Implications 
 

None 
 

7.4 Other Resource Implication (if appropriate) 
 

None 
 
8.0 Legal Implications 

 
8.1 This appears a reasonable and proportionate response to the national 

situation. 
 
9.0 Risks 

 
9.1 There is potential for a later legal challenge to a decision on the basis 

that no duly authorised person was available to make the decision. This 
is designed to mitigate that risk 

 
10.0 Consultation 

 
10.1 All Members were informed of the proposal by sent an initial councillor 

briefing note sent by email on Tuesday 17/03/2020 
 

11.0 Communication 
 

11.1 As Above 
 
12.0 Appendices:  

 
1. Scheme of Delegations 
2. Guide to essential decision making  
3. Cabinet Report 

Page 70



 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: 5 August 2020 
Director: 5 August 2020 
Cabinet 19 March 2020 
 
      
      
Contact Officer: Gill Kneller 
Job Title:  Chief Executive  
Telephone: 01730 234004  
E-Mail: gill.kneller@easthants.gov.uk  
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Suggested amendment to scheme of delegation 

 

Commencement date East Hampshire 19 March 2020 

 

Commencement date Havant 25 March 2020 

 

1. This amendment to the scheme of delegation will only apply at a time when the Council has 

been informed of a [national] emergency or pandemic, the following delegations may be 

adopted by the Chief Executive for all functions or Leader of the Council for executive 

functions until the cessation of the emergency or pandemic has been announced or for 12 

months whichever is the sooner. 

 

2. The Scheme of delegation set out in the constitution shall be varied in so far as necessary 

and required to ensure continuity of all council functions non-executive functions.  

 

i) all non-executive functions (unless specifically reserved by legislation to a 

committee or member decision) will be delegated to officers in accordance with the 

order of precedence set out by post to the first available officer notified in the local 

scheme of delegation. 

 

Order Delegation: 

 

a) Chief Financial Officer 

b) Director of Regeneration and Place 

c) Head of Legal Services 

d) Head of Neighbourhood Support 

e) Head of Strategic Commissioning 

 

ii) That any committee may resolve that any urgent decision may be taken by the 

chairman of the committee and if the Chairman is unavailable the vice chair or other 

member in order of precedence set by the committee at it last meeting. Any such 

decision to be reported to the committee at the first available meeting. 

 

 

3. The scheme of delegation in respect of Executive functions shall be varied in so far as 

necessary and required to ensure continuity of all council executive functions. 

 

Leader. 

 

i) The executive authority of the leader will be delegated to members of cabinet in the 

following order of precedence: 

 

a) Deputy Leader 

Page 73



 

 

b)  Cllr Angela Glass 

c)  Cllr Robert Mocatta 

d)  Chief Executive 

  

 Chief Executive. 

ii) The save where expressly prohibited by legislation in respect of the statutory Chief 

Officer functions executive authority of the Chief Executive and Head of Paid service 

and where necessary the Returning Officer will be delegated to the first available 

officer in accordance with the following order of precedence: 

 

iii) The Chief Financial Officers will be delegated as follows: 

 

a) Catherine Jobling 

 

iv) The Monitoring Officer will be delegated as follows: 

 

a) Daniel Toohey 

b) Gina Homewood 

 

Page 74



Guide to Decision Making During Pandemic 

 

1. The Local Government Act 1972 requires some decision to be made by Council 
or Committee. To take part and vote on a decision a member must be present 
at the meeting. (This legislative requirement may change) 

 
2. Before any meeting or Committee is held the Chairman and Officers must 

carefully consider the need for the meeting. A meeting should only be held if it 
is:  

a) Essential to the economic and financial wellbeing, or essential to ensure the 
welfare of the locality  

b) Essential to the economic, financial wellbeing or welfare of the Council, 
Members and Staff. 

 
3. If the decision is essential, you should consider if the decision may be 

delegated to officers under the current scheme of delegation. 
  
4. If not, you must consider if the decision may be delegated to an officer under 

the emergency scheme of delegation. 
 
5. If not, has the Committee made a resolution to allow the Chairman to take 

decisions on behalf of the Committee between meetings. If so can this decision 
be taken by the Chairman. 

 
6. Only if there is no other solution and the decision is considered essential should 

a meeting be held. 
 
7. All meetings are open to the public. Any meeting notice should make it clear 

that the public should not attend if they are unwell and that public seating 

capacity is restricted due to social spacing.  

 

8. If possible, social media streaming of the meeting should be offered to 

encourage the public participation in the democratic process by remote access. 

 

9. Group leads should be notified and consideration to the Parliamentary 

convention of “pairing” considered so that vulnerable members need not to 

attend. 

 

10. If a minority group wishes to raise a matter and are unable to attend they 

should consider raising the issue via the Chairman.  

 

11. All committee members should be reminded of the rules on quoracy. 

Attendance should be confirmed prior to the meeting, and if the matter is not 

controversial the members should consider if all the members need to attend. 

 

12. At all times the safety of the public, member and officers is paramount. 

Government guidance must be complied with. The need for the meeting, the 

Page 75



local and national circumstances must be constantly reviewed if any doubt 

arises in respect of public safety the meeting must to not take place.  

Page 76



Appendix 3 

NON EXEMPT  
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 19th March 2020 
 
Emergency Scheme of Delegations                   
Author Chief Executive  
 
FOR RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
 
Leader of The Council Cllr Millard 
 
 
Key Decision: No (decision to be taken at full council) 
 

 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. To inform and obtain approval for an amendment to create an 
emergency scheme of delegation to be used as required clarity the 
current coronavirus pandemic. 

 
2.0 Recommendation  
 

2.1.  Agree the changes in the scheme delegations  
2.2.  Refer to first available full Council  
2.3.  Note the draft advice to essential decision making    

 
3.0 Executive Summary  

 
3.1. The current Coronavirus situation raise a real possibility that, Council, 

and Committees may be cancelled. Additionally, any responsible 
officer may be absent from work 
 

The amended scheme of delegation is: 
 

1. Time limited 12 months 
2. Should only be used when other existing mechanisms of decision 

making are work possible. 
 
At the time of writing the new requires members to be present to take part and 
vote in a decision-making process 
 
3.2 There are a member of decisions reserved to members as the Democratic 
representation of the area. The Council needs to ensure that it will be able to 
make decisions both at officer level and member level during the current 
pandemic. 

Page 77



Appendix 3 

 
The proposal is designed to create the greatest flexibility on the decision-
making process. In addition, it is proposed that any committee that does sit in 
invited to pass a resolution to authorise the Chairman to take any urgent or 
essential decisions between meetings. 
  
 
4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications  

 
4.1.  None 

 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 

Directorate Business Plan/s 
 
5.1.  None 

 
6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 

 
6.1.  Do nothing to the current scheme of delegation. The current scheme 

of delegation links specific tasks to specific posts. As matters unfold it 
is likely the position will be fluid with posts holders covering different 
roles at different times during the coming months. 
 

6.2. To amend the scheme of delegation. The suggestion is to increase 
flexibility and to be used only in default of the established procedure.  

 
7.0 Resource Implications 
 

7.1. Financial Implications 
None 

 
7.2. Human Resources Implications 

None 
 

7.3. Information Governance Implications 
None 

 
7.4. Other Resource Implication (if appropriate) 

None 
 
8.0 Legal Implications 

 
8.1.  The proposed amendments are unusual and careful consideration 

must be given by members that it is ensure this is a reasonable and 
proportionate response to the national situation. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



Appendix 3 

9.0 Risks 
 
9.1.  There is potential for a later legal challenge to a decision on the basis 

that no duly authorised person was available to make the decision. 
This is designed to mitigate that risk 

 
 

10.0 Consultation 
 
10.1. All Members were informed of the proposal by sent an initial 

councillor briefing note sent by email on Tuesday 17/03/2020 
 

11.0 Communication 
 
11.1. As Above 

 
 
 
12.0 Appendices:  

 
1. Scheme of Delegations 
2. Guide to essential decision making  
 

 
 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: 19 March 2020 
Director: 19 March 2020 
Portfolio Holder: 19 March 2020 
 
       
      
Contact Officer: Gill Kneller 
Job Title:  Chief Executive  
Telephone: 01730 234004  
E-Mail: gill.kneller@easthants.gov.uk  
 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NON EXEMPT  
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Council 13 August 2020 
 
CLIMATE AND ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY 
Jane Devlin, Climate and Environment Strategy 
Manager 

 

 
FOR DECISION 
 
Portfolio: Portfolio Holder for Welfare and Communities 
                  Cllr Julie Butler 
 
Report No: EHCL/022/2020 
 
Executive Director: Simon Jenkins 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1  On 18 July 2019, East Hampshire District Council declared a climate 

Emergency.(https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=10056). 

This report presents the draft Climate and Environment Strategy 

developed to implement the commitments made by the declaration.  

 
2.0 Recommendation  

 

2.1 The appended Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 has been 

approved by the Executive Board and authorised by the Cabinet. The 

recommendation is that Council adopts this strategy as the policy 

framework to drive action by this authority to address the climate 

emergency locally in East Hampshire.  

 

3.0 Executive Summary  
 

3.1 By declaring a Climate Emergency, the Council has pledged to reduce 

carbon emissions to net-zero by 2050. 

3.2 The Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 has been shaped by 

the Portfolio Holder  (Cllr Butler), the deputy Portfolio Holder (Cllr 

Oppenheimer),  the Climate Champion (Cllr Boxall) the two Cabinet 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=10056


 

 

Liaison Panels, and members of community groups who attended a 

‘Let’s Talk Climate and Environment’ event in February 2020.  

3.3 The Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 sets out the 

Council’s vision, approach, and priorities for addressing the climate and 

environment challenges we all face and links our activities to national 

and international commitments. 

 

3.4 There are two high level objectives for the strategy: to reduce carbon 

emissions to zero by 2050; and to protect and enhance the local 

natural environment. 

 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Julie Butler      5 June 2020 
 
Executive Head: Simon Jenkins      5 June 2020 

Executive Board:   16 June 2020  

Cabinet:                                            9 July 22020  

  
 
Contact Officer: Jane Devlin 
Job Title:   Climate and Environment Strategy Manager 
Telephone:  01730 234014 /Skype for Business 
E-Mail:  Jane.Devlin@easthants.gov.uk 

Page 82

mailto:Jane.Devlin@easthants.gov.uk


East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 1 of 17 

East Hampshire District Council 

Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 

Foreword 

Julie Butler - Portfolio Holder 

I am pleased to introduce the Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 which will drive 

change. The climate crisis and the negative impact on our environment affects every 

resident in East Hampshire and beyond. It is the most important challenge we face, and we 

must work together to tackle it.  

We declared a Climate and Environment Emergency on 19 July 2019.  Our work so far has 

considered options and consulted stakeholders and shaped this strategy. I chair two Cabinet 

Liaison Panels, made up elected members from across the political parties.  They will work 

to inspire change, lobby for funding and be the voices in their local communities.  

This spring, 2020, the unforeseen impact of a pandemic has radically changed the way we 

behave and work, demonstrating how adaptable we can be. We want use lessons learned 

from the response to Covid-19 to take action for the climate emergency.   

A changing climate has profound implications for the lives of everyone today, and for future 

generations as well. It directly influences how your Council plans to meet the needs of 

everyone in the district.  But it is also everyone’s responsibility to make changes to address 

the crisis. We want to take an inclusive approach and maintain a dialogue on climate issues 

though our Let’s Talk initiative.  

There will be benefits if we get this right: energy-efficient buildings, affordable renewable 

energy, sustainable transport, food security, improved local biodiversity, and opportunities to 

strengthen enterprises of all types in the transition to a low-carbon economy.  

This Strategy sets out East Hampshire District Council’s vision for the Climate and 

Environment. We lead by tackling our operational direct and indirect emissions. We will work 

in partnership with the South Downs National Park for sustainable development through 

Planning policy.  And we will take action to support our residents, communities, and 

businesses to deliver a low-carbon economically vibrant future for East Hampshire. 

I am determined this strategy will enable everyone to pay their part in addressing the climate 

and environment emergency and look forward to working in partnership for a better future.  

Cllr Julie Butler 

[Cllr Julie Butler]  

 

Page 83



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 2 of 17 

Ginny Boxall - Climate Champion 

The changing climate is already having impacts across the world and in the UK, including 

East Hampshire. Terrible images of flooding, severe weather events, storms and heatwaves 

and the devastating effects they have are seen with increasing frequency. 

In July 2019, East Hampshire District Council declared a Climate Emergency. The Council 

resolved to take action to make all Council Services carbon neutral as soon as reasonably 

practicable or in any case by 2050 in line with national targets. We committed to work with 

our partners and communities to make East Hampshire a carbon neutral district. 

Every time we decide to use our cars, fly away on holiday, buy goods, and even switch on a 

light we are likely contributing to more greenhouse gas emissions.  

Reducing harmful greenhouse gas emissions and achieving a decarbonised and secure 

energy supply is extremely challenging because we will have to change the way we do 

everyday things.  

 The Council has declared a Climate Emergency and is committed to change the way it 

delivers it services. This Strategy also lays out how the Council will support and influence 

our local communities and enterprises, so that everyone can make the changes we need to 

see. 

This strategy recognises that to achieve carbon neutrality for council services, and across 

the whole district, is a marathon, not a sprint.  This strategy commits us to embed protecting 

the climate into our policies and decision making, but also to be accountable and maintain 

honest and robust reporting of our progress.  

As East Hampshire’s District Council’s Climate Champion, I have pledged to build networks 

and foster relationships we need to inspire and deliver positive change.  

Laying the policy foundation is just as important as winning hearts and minds. I have 

pledged to make our approach inclusive and wide-ranging. The prize is a sustainable and 

durable future, and I hope you can join us in making this a realisable outcome.  

Cllr Ginny Boxall 

[Cllr Ginny Boxall]   

  

Page 84



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 3 of 17 

Executive summary 

There is a global climate and environment emergency. The evidence is irrefutable, and the 

science is clear. Human beings are causing damage to the planet, and that damage has 

accelerated over the past 50 years. The impacts of the climate crisis are having serious 

negative impacts on our livelihoods and communities.   

East Hampshire District Council declared a climate Emergency in 2019: it is not too late for 

us to turn things around, but success depends on everyone to make transformative change 

and act now. 

This strategy has been shaped by stakeholder engagement and by our elected members. An 

event held in February 2020 brought key stakeholders from across the district together for a 

day to consider and debate how the council can have the greatest impact in tacking the 

climate crisis, and in protecting our local environment. The strategy embraces how the 

Council can work with residents, communities and with all sectors of the local economy. 

The purpose of this strategy is to provide a clear statement of the Council’s climate and 

environment objectives and to set out how the Council will act to meet climate, environment, 

and sustainability challenges.  

The Climate and Environment Strategy sets out the Council’s vision, approach, and priorities 

over the next five years. A supporting Action Plan to be developed will identify initiatives and 

indicate how we will report on progress towards our goals.  

There are two high level objectives for the strategy: to reduce carbon emissions to net-zero 

by 2050; and to protect and enhance the local natural environment. 

We have outlined in the strategy how to reduce the Council’s emissions to net-zero, and how 

we will use our influence and powers as local planning authority to promote a sustainable 

low-carbon future where people and nature thrive.  

We will strengthen our working relationships with the South Downs, the County, and our 

parishes to align policy and focus resources on tacking the climate crisis. 

East Hampshire District Council will take an inclusive approach and promote ways for 

everyone to play a part in tackling the climate emergency.   

Endorsement from the Chief Executive 

The Leadership of East Hampshire District Council recognises the climate crisis poses a key 
risk for the authority. The first step was taken in July 2019 when Council unanimously moved 
to declare a Climate Emergency.  
 
The Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 builds on the declaration and pledges 
action to address the climate emergency. It firmly establishes a collaborative and integrated 
approach that embraces all our activities, aligning our targets and timescales with the 
national legally binding target of carbon net-zero by 2050. 
 
The Council’s own operations and service delivery, and that of our contractors and partners 
are within my direct remit and will be made a priority. The strategy provides the organisation 
with a clear roadmap for action and gives me and my leadership team the go-ahead to 
embed and mainstream climate in our business plans and to make the changes we need. 

Page 85



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 4 of 17 

It highlights our mandate as a planning authority to ensure carbon net-zero is achieved by or 
before 2050 as we emerge from the 2020 Covid 19 pandemic. As a local authority, we 
influence a wide range of stakeholders. We need to influence everyone to join us in taking 
action for the climate and environment. The challenge is to deliver low-carbon outcomes 
whilst fostering a vibrant economy and thriving community. 

Alongside net-zero, the strategy pledges to protect and enhance the natural environment. 
East Hampshire is a predominantly rural district, and our residents, businesses and visitors 
all benefit from our wonderful landscape. 

One of our strengths is working in partnership, which we will use to inspire the changes we 
need to achieve net-zero carbon for East Hampshire in collaboration with the South Downs 
National Park Authority, the County Council, our Town and Parish Councils, enterprises and 
residents. 

The next five years is a crucial period to set the course for net-zero, engage with all our 
stakeholders and embed the vision for the future. 

Gill Kneller  

Page 86



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 5 of 17 

Contents 
 

Foreword ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Julie Butler - Portfolio Holder ............................................................................................. 1 

Ginny Boxall - Climate Champion ...................................................................................... 2 

Executive summary ............................................................................................................... 3 

Endorsement from the Chief Executive.............................................................................. 3 

1. Introduction .................................................................................................................... 6 

Overview ........................................................................................................................... 6 

National and International Policy context ........................................................................... 6 

Local context and key challenges ...................................................................................... 7 

How can you be involved? ................................................................................................. 7 

East Hampshire in profile. .................................................................................................. 8 

The Impact ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Tackling Climate Change................................................................................................... 9 

2. About Our Strategy ...................................................................................................... 10 

East Hampshire District Council’s Vision ......................................................................... 10 

The Purpose of the Strategy ............................................................................................ 10 

Strategic objective 1. Climate .......................................................................................... 10 

Strategic objective 2. Environment .................................................................................. 10 

Scope and influence of the strategy ................................................................................. 10 

3. Initiatives for the Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 .................................. 11 

The Strategy at a Glance ................................................................................................. 11 

A. Initiatives to reduce emissions of the Council’s estate and operations ...................... 13 

B:  How we will influence emissions for East Hampshire’s residents, community groups 

and businesses. .............................................................................................................. 13 

C:    How we will protect and enhance our local Natural Environment ............................. 14 

4. Delivery, monitoring and engagement .......................................................................... 15 

Progress to date .............................................................................................................. 15 

Delivery ........................................................................................................................... 15 

Being Accountable .......................................................................................................... 15 

More Information ............................................................................................................. 16 

Glossary and abbreviations ............................................................................................. 16 

References and further Reading ...................................................................................... 17 

How to find a local climate and environment action group. .............................................. 17 

 

Page 87

file:///D:/J_documents/ehdc%20temp/Work%20lockdown%20folder/ehdc%202020cestrat/EH%20Climate%20Environment%20Strategy%20Final/V10/200630%20Climate%20Environment%20Strategy%202020%20to%202025.docx%23_Toc44422543


East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 6 of 17 

 

1. Introduction 

Overview 

Climate change is a large-scale, long-term shift in the earth’s weather patterns as a result of 

increasing average global temperatures. In recent decades extreme and unpredictable 

weather events such as flash floods, storms and high winds, heatwaves, and summer 

droughts have caused a climate crisis.  

Human activity is responsible for the climate crisis. Burning fossil fuels, intensified 

agriculture, polluting industrial processes and the clearance of vegetation accelerate the 

impact of greenhouse gases in the atmosphere.  

The impact is recognised globally.  

National and International Policy context 

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) published a report in October 2018 

which concluded that we have less than 12 years to act to avoid the worst impacts of climate 

change.  The report highlights a number of climate impacts that could be avoided by limiting 

global warming to 1.5°C compared to 2°C, or more.  It suggests that limiting global warming 

to 1.5°C may still be possible with ambitious action by governments that signed the Paris 

Agreement. 

The UK is one of over 150 nations to sign up to the UN Paris Agreement in November 2016. 

By signing, all the countries committed to put forward their best efforts and to strengthen 

these efforts in the years ahead. This includes requirements that all countries report 

regularly on their emissions and on their implementation efforts. 

On 12th June 2019, the UK government amended the Climate Change Act 2008, introducing 

a net-zero greenhouse gases target by 2050.  This commits the UK to eliminating emissions 

from homes, transport, farming and industry, or in the most difficult cases through offsetting 

by planting trees and carbon capture and storage. 

To achieve the 2050 net-zero target, the UK Government has adopted policies which 

envisage the role of local authorities as a catalyst in delivering urgent and necessary action 

to address the climate crisis. 

In October 2017, the government adopted the Clean Growth Strategy, proposing measures 

for decarbonising all sectors of the UK economy through the 2020s. It explains how the 

whole country can benefit from low-carbon opportunities, while meeting national and 

international commitments to tackle climate change. Amendments to this strategy have 

brought forward timescales for instance, banning the sale of petrol and diesel vehicles by 

2035.  

In January 2018, the Government published ‘A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve 

the Environment’. The 25 year plan confirms the government’s aim to take all possible action 

to mitigate climate change by continuing to cut GHG emissions, while adapting to reduce its 

impact through risk assessments and responses to floods, heatwaves, new pests and 

disruption to food production.  

Page 88



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 7 of 17 

East Hampshire District Council in declaring a Climate Emergency, acknowledges the global 

climate crisis and is committed to working locally within our remit to implement this strategy 

and play our part for a sustainable future. We look forward to working with you as a resident, 

a partner, a community group, or local enterprise. 

The Council already works with the South Downs National Park Authority, and Hampshire 

County Council to align objectives and co-ordinate resources to tackle climate change. We 

also have useful working relationships with the 40 parishes and towns in East Hampshire.  

Local context and key challenges 

East Hampshire is an exceptionally attractive part of southern England with 57% of the 

district lying within the South Downs National Park. It is a popular place in which to live, work 

or visit, with historic market towns and attractive villages set in beautiful countryside. The 

area’s natural environment and biodiversity is nationally and internationally recognised and 

protected. The buildings, open spaces and particularly the landscape, all contribute to the 

special character of the area. Together, they provide a rich heritage that adds to the quality 

of life for residents and people who work here and attracts visitors and tourists.  

Some of the key challenges for this strategy in the district: 

o High levels of ‘out-commuting’ and car ownership, coupled with the rural nature of the 

District means high levels of transport emissions.  

o Energy use in homes represents 24% of carbon emissions.  With 50,000 existing 

homes and about 3000 more to come in the next 5 years, both retrofitting existing 

homes, and ensuring new homes have high performance standards is important. 

o Tourism is an important part of our economy, but it can put pressure on the local 

environment.   We need to balance access to the countryside, whilst protecting 

priority habitats of nature conservation importance.  

o Farming and agriculture in the area as well as other businesses can be impacted by 

flooding rivers flooding, but surface water and groundwater flooding also present 

hazards. We also need to reduce carbon emissions from food production and protect 

the soil. 

o Fresh water supplies are under pressure due to population growth. Over 80% of the 

District is underlain by a principal aquifer and 40% is within a Groundwater Source 

Protection Zone, so the challenge is to limit extraction of fresh water but maintain our 

targets for new homes. 

How can you be involved? 

You can make a difference: 

 At home or at work, reduce energy use by making buildings energy efficient 
 Switch to renewable sources of energy 
 Choose locally produced food, and reduce meat and dairy consumption 
 Switch to sustainable travel: walk and cycle more and save GHG emissions, fly less.  
 Use resources more efficiently: avoid waste, reuse and recycle. 
 Help us increase tree cover by planting a tree near to where you live 

And you can help to persuade others to do the same by joining a local group. East 
Hampshire District Council, with this strategy, will work with you to make the changes we 
need to tackle the climate emergency. 

Page 89



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 8 of 17 

 

 

East Hampshire in profile. 

East Hampshire is an economically successful area at the heart of South East England.  It lies 

between London and the South Coast. 57% of the district lies in the South Downs National 

Park. 

Total land mass: 514 sq. km 

Population:  120,000, set to grow by 10% over the next decade. 

Main towns:  Alton, Petersfield, Whitehill & Bordon 

Large villages:  Horndean, Liphook, Liss and Four Marks 

Rivers  

Three river valleys have an influence on the landform of the East Hampshire District. These 

are the River Itchen, River Meon and River Wey. Due to the water level in the chalk falling, the 

source of the River Itchen is now outside of the East Hampshire District.  

Geology 

The East Hampshire District lies at the boundary between the Hampshire Basin to the west 

and the Weald to the east. The geological range is confined to sedimentary rocks of the 

Cretaceous period, mainly Upper, Middle and Lower Chalk of the Hampshire Basin. 

Business and economy 

Business activity ranges from agriculture to information technology and tourism 

Number of businesses: more than 5,500                Total jobs: Over 56,000 

Page 90



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 9 of 17 

 

 The Impact  

Without action, rising global temperatures will increase the frequency and intensity of 

unpredictable weather events. The natural environment will be affected, with the loss of 

many species of flora and fauna. Ecosystems and the ecosystem services they provide will 

change and have an adverse impact on our economy and food supply chains.  

The IPCC predicts: 

 Climate change is expected to magnify regional differences in Europe’s natural 

resources and assets. Negative impacts will include increased risk of inland flash-

floods, more frequent coastal flooding and increased erosion. 

 Glaciers will retreat and snow cover will reduce affecting winter tourism. There could 

be extensive loss of plant and animal species.  

 In Southern Europe, climate change is projected to worsen conditions (high 

temperatures and drought) in a region already vulnerable to climate variability and to 

reduce water availability, hydropower potential, summer tourism and, in general, crop 

productivity. 

 The Panel also anticipate that there will be increased risks to health associated with 

heat waves. In particular for the young and the elderly. 

For East Hampshire, the impact of climate change will likely mean hotter drier summers with 

more chance of heat waves and drought and wetter, milder winters with more storms and 

flooding.  

Tackling Climate Change  

Our response to climate change will be managed on two fronts:  

Mitigation: Taking action to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

Adaptation: Being prepared for the impacts caused by changes in our climate. 

By developing a coherent approach to mitigation and adaptation, the Council will benefit by 

saving energy and money, and improved environmental performance.  

Our residents and businesses benefit through an improved quality of life and being more 

prepared for the threats posed by the changing climate 

Through East Hampshire District Council’s Climate Change Emergency Declaration and the 

production of this Climate and Environment Strategy, the Council is committed to reducing 

greenhouse gas emissions to net-zero by or before 2050 in line with national legislation.  

You can keep in touch with the latest initiatives, with the Council’s ‘Let’s Talk’ initiative, and 

you can follow progress on the website and on our social media. Your Council wants to work 

with everyone for a sustainable future.  

 

 

 

 

Page 91



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 10 of 17 

 

2. About Our Strategy 

East Hampshire District Council’s Vision 

East Hampshire District Council will make operations net-zero as soon as reasonably 

practicable or in any case by 2050. We will work with relevant agencies, partners and 

communities and lobby government to support this ambition. 

We will work with our residents, community groups and enterprises towards making 

East Hampshire a carbon neutral district. We want the district to deliver its part in the 

wider county, national and international commitments on reducing emissions, and to 

prepare for the impacts of climate change.  

We want to achieve an environmentally sustainable future, to support the local 

economy and communities. We will work to improve health and wellbeing so that we 

live in harmony with nature. 

 

The Purpose of the Strategy 

The purpose of the strategy is to provide a clear statement of the Council’s climate and 

environment objectives and to set out how the Council will address the emergency we face. 

It describes how we will reduce the Council’s own impact and how, working with our public 

and private sector partners and our communities, we will support the transformation needed 

across the district to tackle the problem. 

Our Strategic Objectives are: 

Strategic objective 1. Climate 

To reduce carbon emissions in line with the Climate Change Act 2008 to be net-zero by 

2050 for all Council services, whether they are delivered by us, or through a partnership. 

More than this, we will use our mandate as a local authority to ensure sustainable 

development and support our residents and enterprises to reduce carbon emissions to net-

zero by 2050.  

Strategic objective 2. Environment 

To protect, improve and enhance our natural environment locally for biodiversity net gain. 

The ecosystem services provided by the natural environment is our life-support system. We 

will work in collaboration to enable everyone to play a part in improving biodiversity, air and 

water quality.   

 Scope and influence of the strategy  

This is a strategy for East Hampshire District Council (rather than the county of Hampshire) 

and identifies how we must work with our public and private sector partners and 

communities across Hampshire.  

The Council has direct control on its own activities, but as a local planning authority, has a 

wider reach and is able to influence residents and enterprises through the planning system 

Page 92



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 11 of 17 

and its public role, as shown in Figure 1.

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1:  Council’s spheres of influence 

3. Initiatives for the Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025 

This strategy sets out the priorities of East Hampshire District Council over the next five 

years to address the climate change emergency declared in July 2019.  The priorities are 

split out into two categories that reflect our strategic objectives and are themed as shown in 

Figure 2: The Strategy at a Glance. 

The Strategy at a Glance 

1.Organisation 

The Council has 

direct control 

over its carbon 

footprint 

 

2. Procured 

Service and 

Partners 

The Council sets 

specifications for 

the procurement of 

goods and 

services 

3. Council Policy 

and Strategy 

The Council has 

direct control of its 

policy making, 

influenced by 

community needs 

and partners 

4. Public Sector 

Strategies 

The Council has 

influence on 

public sector 

and 

governmental 

strategies   

5. Wider Communities 

The Council influences 

our communities to 

share our vision and 

encourage them to 

take their own action. 

Page 93



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 12 of 17 

 

Figure 2 Climate and Environment Objectives and Initiatives 

Green House Gas emissions

Policy framework and leadership

A: Council direct and 
indirect emissions

A1

Buildings 
and Council 
operations

A2

Council 
Partners and 
contractors 

B: Communities, Development, 
Economy

B1

Community 
engagement

B2

Guiding 
future 

development

B3

Incentives 
for 

enterprises 

Natural environment

Ecosystem services and 
biodiversity

C: Protect and enhance local 
green spaces

C1

Increase Tree 
cover

C2

Community 
led open 

green-
spaces

C3

Partnership 
working

P
age 94



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 13 of 17 

A. Initiatives to reduce emissions of the Council’s estate and operations 

East Hampshire District Council must reduce corporate operational emissions to ensure we 

fulfil our Climate Emergency obligations. We will embed sustainability into our policies, 

systems, and processes across Council Services. 

The Council’s own operations are only a small proportion of the combined greenhouse gas 

emissions in the district.  However, we will demonstrate leadership by tackling our own 

emissions as a priority.   

Some significant operations are undertaken by partners on long-term contracts. The council 

will control emissions through procurement specification, and at contract review points. 

Examples include leisure centre operation, and refuse collection. 

A1: Priorities for tackling the emission from Council Estates and operations 

i Reduce emissions from council buildings and vehicles to zero by or before 2050 by 

switching to renewable energy and EVs 

ii Harness new technology for a transition to innovative low-carbon on-line and cloud-

based working practices. Reduce office space requirements 

iii Mandate that all business cases, proposal papers and decision-making and 

assessments include criteria to address the climate emergency 

iv Change the culture of the organisation with carbon literacy awareness at all levels 

v Reduce emissions from staff commuting and members attending meetings 

 

A2: Priorities for tackling the emissions from our partners and contractors 

i All new or reviewed contracts and procurement will embrace the net-zero by or 

before 2050 target from 2020 

ii Strategic long-term partners’ emissions will be managed to net-zero by or before 

2050 within existing contracts e.g. in leisure centres and from refuse collection. 

iii Income earned from the Property portfolio will be refocused on economically viable 

and marketable low-carbon sustainable investments 

 

B:  How we will influence emissions for East Hampshire’s residents, 

community groups and businesses. 

Influencing the wider area starts with being accountable for what we are doing. We will use 

our channels of communication and networks in the community and across our local 

economy to present everyone with the opportunity to make the changes we need to see to 

reach net-zero carbon emission for the whole district by or before 2050.  

B1: Priorities for engaging positively and working in partnership on climate and 

environment for the community 

i Promote climate crisis messages to raise awareness and stimulate public 

engagement to foster change  

Page 95



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 14 of 17 

ii Extend retrofitting for existing homes by promoting and expanding schemes 

funding installation energy-efficiency measures like cavity-wall insulation and 

smart thermostats   

iii Engage and facilitate a network of ‘Green Groups’ to enable effective sharing of 

successful initiatives for behaviour change 

iv Support Parish and Town councils with energy audits of occupied buildings 

v Allocate 25% of Councillor Grants to support Climate and Environment 

Initiatives in the community 

  

B2: Priorities for guiding future development e.g. through the planning system 

i Minimise the climate impact of new development through our Local Plan policies 

and development management decisions 

ii Ensure new builds are meeting or exceeding their planning permission 

conditions and obligations 

iii Reinforce and implement plans and strategies which support low-carbon 

transport alternatives, including the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 

Plan 

 

B3: Priorities for providing incentives for businesses and enterprise 

i Encourage the switch electric vehicles (EV) including taxis 

ii Climate and Environment criteria and impacts will be a material consideration 

when awarding grants and funding 

iii Identify and secure external funding opportunities for transition to sustainable 

and low-carbon practices 

iv Celebrate best practice amongst our local businesses and shops, for instance to 

improve energy efficiency, or innovation to address the climate crisis 

 

C:    How we will protect and enhance our local Natural Environment 

 We want to see better and inclusive access and enjoyment of the natural environment 

alongside sustainable management.  

C1: Priorities for Environmental improvements 

i Increase tree cover in the district and see that 120,000 trees are planted in East 

Hampshire, one for every resident 

  

C2: Priorities for Community led open green-spaces 

 
i Give communities and residents the opportunity to take the lead on land owned 

by East Hampshire District Council for planting wildflowers and improving local 

biodiversity. Work to identify sources of funding to support this activity, including 

Page 96



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 15 of 17 

the Ministry of Housing Communities & Local Government ‘Pocket Parks’ grant 

scheme 

 

C3: Priorities for partnership working 

i Eliminate routine use of pesticides in public open spaces 

ii Improve access and enjoyment and appreciation of our landscape 

iii Work closely with large landowners and public bodies for better outcomes for the 

natural environment 

 

4. Delivery, monitoring and engagement 

Progress to date 

Since declaring the Climate and Environment Emergency in July 2019, the Council has 

convened two cabinet liaison panels (CLPs), made up of members from all parties who have 

pledged to work together to address the Climate and Environment Emergency. They have 

identified and prioritised initiatives, debated how best to lobby and influence better 

outcomes, and engaged with stakeholders at our Let’s Talk event in February 2020. 

 A Climate Champion, Cllr Ginny Boxall, has begun to act as ‘ambassador’ for the climate 

and environment, publicly supporting positive outcomes, spearheading events across the 

district, thanking you and celebrating your contributions to a sustainable future. 

Delivery  

The Climate Change Strategy will be implemented through an Action Plan to be developed 

to implement this Strategy.  It is a working document that identifies objectives and actions to 

achieve the Outcomes over the 5 years of this Strategy and lays the foundation for the next 

5 years. 

Being Accountable  

 As part of the Climate Emergency Declaration, the Council made a commitment to provide 

regular and frequent reports on the progress against the strategic objectives of our Climate 

and Environment Strategy. 

What we will do to be accountable to our stakeholders for the progress on our 

Climate Strategy 

We will work with the County Council to develop a reporting methodology for carbon 

emissions. We will undertake verifiable and objective reporting against the indicators listed 

in the Action Plan.  

We will publish our reports as part of the Annual Report every year 

We will update our independent Integrated Impact Assessment to include climate and 

environment criteria and ensure that the key indicators are prioritised 

The Action Plan will be reviewed and updated regularly.  

 

Page 97



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 16 of 17 

 

More Information 

Glossary and abbreviations 

Carbon, Carbon Dioxide  C; 
CO2 

 Carbon dioxide is the biggest contributor to GHG in the 
atmosphere by volume, responsible for global warming. 
Carbon in fossil fuels generates CO2 when burned. . 

Council Services 
 

East Hampshire District Council is a District authority 
within Hampshire County.  Services include bin 
collections, benefits and housing, communities, economic 
development licensing, parking services Council Tax 
collection and Planning applications.  

Cabinet Liaison Panels CLP Chaired by Cllr Julie Butler, the two liaison panels provide 
the governance and leadership for climate and 
environment initiatives. They steer the actions and take 
action on lobbying and funding opportunities.   

Carbon capture and storage CCS Processes which suck carbon dioxide out of the 
atmosphere, make a chemical or physical change and 
stores it so it cannot escape back into the atmosphere. 
Only small-scale schemes have been proven as reliable.  

Climate Emissions - Emissions of gases that increase the green-house effect. 
They include Carbon, methane, nitrous oxide and many 
more. Often expressed at CO2 equivalent or CO2e. See 
also GHG 

Direct and indirect emissions 
 

Direct emissions are those produced directly by an 
organisation; indirect emissions are made by a contractor 
or supplier on behalf of an organisation 

Ecosystem Services 
 

Ecosystem services are provided free of charge by our 
natural environment, sometimes referred to as 'natural 
capital'. Ecosystem services are our life-support system 
and enable us to thrive. Ecosystem Services include 
Provisioning services, fresh water, food and materials, 
timber and minerals, Supporting services, functions that 
underpin all the other ecosystem services, like soil 
formation, nutrient and water cycling, and biodiversity. 
Regulating Services of natural processes for good air 
quality, water and soil quality, water flow and flood control, 
and pollination. And finally, Cultural services, the ‘non-
material’ benefits from our interaction with the natural 
environment, offering inspiration, tranquillity, recreation, 
and cultural heritage. We must look after our environment; 
after all, it looks after us.  

Electric Vehicles EV Zero emission cars and vans using battery power. 

Greenhouse gas GHG Atmospheric gases which cause global warming, 
principally carbon dioxide, but includes methane, nitrous 
oxide, and many others.  GHG are used to quantify 
emissions and for carbon budgets in the UK. 

Hampshire County Council HCC Hampshire County Council is the transport Authority, and 
waste disposal authority. East Hampshire is a District 
within Hampshire.  

Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan  

LCWIP East Hampshire District Council’s policy to enhance and 
promote low-carbon alternatives to car use. 

Local Plan 
 

The Local Plan is the overarching planning policy strategy 
that guides how development is delivered in a planning 
authority area.  

Net-zero   The target of net-zero means cutting greenhouse gas 
emissions, to as close to zero as possible, and offsetting 
the remaining emissions to prevent global temperature 
rise. It means the same as ‘carbon neutral’. 

Page 98



East Hampshire District Council  
Climate and Environment Strategy 2020-2025   Page 17 of 17 

Resource efficiency - Avoiding waste, reusing or recycling materials and things.  

South Downs National Park SDNP The SDNP is the newest National Park in England. It 
covers an area from Eastbourne to Winchester and 
overlaps EHDC area in the south of the District.  

 

References and further Reading 

Landscape Character 
Report 

East Hampshire 
District Council July 2006 

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docu
ments/FinalReportChapters1to6.pdf  

Climate change and the 
EU's response EU Commission November 2007 

https://ec.europa.eu/commission/presscorner/detail/e
n/MEMO_07_515  

UK Climate Change Act  UK Government November 2008 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/27/content
s 

Sustainable development 
goals 2030 United Nations  May 2015 https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs  

The Paris 
Agreement/Accord 

United Nations 
Committee on 
Climate Change November 2016 

https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-
agreement/the-paris-agreement 

Clean Growth Strategy UK Government October 2017 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-
growth-strategy 

25 Year Environment Plan UK Government January 2018 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-
year-environment-plan 

Green Finance Strategy UK Government July 2019 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/
uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/82028
4/190716_BEIS_Green_Finance_Strategy_Accessib
le_Final.pdf 

SDNPA Local Plan SDNPA July 2019 
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-
policy/south-downs-local-plan/ 

Hampshire CC 
strategy/vision 

Hampshire County 
Council January 2020 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/News/07012020ClimateCh
ange 

Local Plan Draft 
East Hampshire 
District Council May 2020 https://www.easthants.gov.uk/localplan  

 

How to find a local climate and environment action group. 

The best way to get involved is to find a local group with a focus on the climate and 

environment. By joining a group, you can learn more about local priorities, contribute, and 

join the debate through our Let’s Talk events. Find your group by searching for ‘climate and 

environment’ on our website. 

 

Page 99

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/FinalReportChapters1to6.pdf
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/FinalReportChapters1to6.pdf
https://ec.europa.eu/commission/presscorner/detail/en/MEMO_07_515
https://ec.europa.eu/commission/presscorner/detail/en/MEMO_07_515
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/27/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/27/contents
https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/sdgs
https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement
https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-growth-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-growth-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-year-environment-plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-year-environment-plan
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/820284/190716_BEIS_Green_Finance_Strategy_Accessible_Final.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/820284/190716_BEIS_Green_Finance_Strategy_Accessible_Final.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/820284/190716_BEIS_Green_Finance_Strategy_Accessible_Final.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/820284/190716_BEIS_Green_Finance_Strategy_Accessible_Final.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-policy/south-downs-local-plan/
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-policy/south-downs-local-plan/
https://www.hants.gov.uk/News/07012020ClimateChange
https://www.hants.gov.uk/News/07012020ClimateChange
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/localplan


This page is intentionally left blank



 

NON EXEMPT  
 

                

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Council 13 August 2020 
 
 
Pay Policy Statement 2020/21  
 
FOR DECISION 
 
Portfolio: Portfolio Holder:  Cllr Nick Drew 
                  
 
Head of Service: Caroline Tickner, Head of Organisational 
Development 
 
Key Decision: No  
 

 
 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. This report is submitted to East Hampshire District Council in order to 
meet a statutory requirement to publish a Pay Policy statement annually.  

 
2.0 Recommendation  

 

At its meeting held on 13 July 2020, the Joint Human Resources 
Committee: 

 
2.1. Recommended that the Pay Policy Statement for East Hampshire 

District Council be approved. 
 
3.0 Executive Summary  

 
3.1. The Localism Act 2011 places specific obligations on local authorities to 

be transparent and accountable for the way in which pay, and awards 
are applied.  
 

3.2. The Act requires each authority to produce a pay policy statement 
annually to ensure pay information is available to members of the public 
for all levels of staff from chief officer level to the lowest paid employee. 
Whilst salary is a central feature of the statement, there is also a 
requirement for transparency on other types of remuneration such as 
fees, allowances, benefits in kind, termination payments etc. 

 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 12



 

3.3. The current pay policy statement for the council has been reviewed to 
ensure its accuracy for publication for 2020/21.  

 
4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications  

 
4.1. Nil 
 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 

Directorate Business Plan/s 
 

5.1. The publication of pay policy statement is a statutory requirement under 
the Localism Act 2011. 

 
6.0 Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 

 
6.1.  N/A 
 
7.0 Resource Implications 
 
7.1. Financial Implications 
 

None identified 
 

7.2. Human Resources Implications 
 

None identified 
 

7.3. Information Governance Implications 
 

None identified 
 

7.4. Other Resource Implication (if appropriate) 
 

None identified 
 

8.0 Legal Implications 
 

8.1. The publication of the pay policy statements is a statutory requirement. 
We are fulfilling all legal obligations by publishing the statements. 

 
9.0 Risks 

 
9.1. There is a risk of non-compliance in respect of the authority executing its 

statutory duties however by providing this statement of fact on pay, this 
is mitigated. 

 
10.0 Consultation 

 
10.1. Executive Board have been consulted on the pay policy statement of the 

authority and have approved the attached. 

Page 102



 

 
 
 

11.0 Communication 
 

11.1 The pay policy statement will be published on the council website and 
become available to the public following approval at Full Council. 

 
12.0 Appendices:  

 
Appendix 1 – East Hampshire District Council Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 
13.0 Background Papers: None 
 
 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: 30th June, 2020  
S151 Officer: 25th June, 2020  
Director: 26th June 2020  
Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Drew 25th June 2020 
       
      
 
 
Contact Officer: Gina King 
Job Title:   HR Advisor 
Telephone:  Ext 46110 
E-Mail:  gina.king@easthants.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



PAY POLICY 
STATEMENT

Financial Year 2020-21

Page 105



2

This Pay Policy Statement is provided in accordance with Section 
38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 and this will be updated annually 
from April each year.

This pay policy statement sets out East Hampshire District Council’s 
policies relating to the pay of its workforce for the financial year 
2020-21, in particular:

• The remuneration of its Chief Officers
• The remuneration of its “lowest paid employees”
• The relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers 

and the remuneration of its employees who are not Chief 
Officers 

This Policy Statement is an annual revision. It is available on the 
council’s website. The council’s website also includes separately 
published data on salary information relating to Chief Officers.

1. Purpose

Page 106



3

For the purpose of this Pay Policy Statement the following definitions will 
apply:

2.1 “Pay” in addition to salary includes charges, fees, allowances, increases 
in/enhancements to pension entitlements, and termination payments.

2.2 “Chief Officer” refers to roles within East Hampshire District Council 
within the senior leadership team, which comprises Statutory and Non 
Statutory Chief Officer posts:

• Joint Chief Executive 
• Director
• Head of Service

Officers within this Chief Officer group will normally hold statutory functions 
(Head of Paid Service, S151 Officer, Monitoring Officer) unless delegated by 
exception.

East Hampshire District Council has a partnership agreement with 
Havant Borough Council. Shared posts are covered by the Inter Authority 
Agreement.
 
2.3 “Lowest paid employees” refers to those staff employed within grade 
1 of the council’s pay framework. There are no staff governed by National 
consultation groups.

The above definition for the “lowest paid employees” has been adopted 
because grade 1 is the lowest grade on the council’s pay framework. 

2.4 “Employee who is not a Chief Officer” refers to all staff who are not 
covered under the “Chief Officer” group above. This includes the “lowest 
paid employees” i.e. staff on grades 1. 

2. Definitions

Page 107



4

3.  Pay framework and 
remuneration levels
3.1 General approach

Remuneration at all levels needs to be adequate to secure and retain high-
quality employees dedicated to fulfilling the council’s business objectives 
and delivering services to the public.  

This has to be balanced by ensuring remuneration is not, nor is seen to be, 
unnecessarily excessive.  Each council has responsibility for balancing these 
factors and each council faces its own unique challenges and opportunities 
in doing so and retains flexibility to cope with various circumstances 
that may arise, including the use of market supplements or other such 
mechanisms for individual categories of posts where appropriate.

3.2 Responsibility for decisions on remuneration 

It is essential for good governance that decisions on pay and reward 
packages for Chief Executives and Chief Officers are made in an open and 
accountable way and that there is a verified and accountable process for 
recommending the levels of top salaries.

Pay for the “lowest paid employees” and “all other employees who are 
not Chief Officers” is determined by negotiation between UNISON and 
the senior management team through an annual pay claim instigated by 
UNISON at a local level.

The East Hampshire District Council pay framework was agreed and 
implemented on 1 April 1991.

In 2019-20, work began to align the payscales within Havant Borough 
Council and East Hampshire District Council to ensure consistency in pay 
across both councils. This is particularly important where roles are shared 
across both councils. This work will be built upon in 2020-21 to ensure that 
there is an even spread of points within each grade.

Page 108



5

3.3 Salary grades and grading framework 

Salary grades for staff who are not Chief Officers are 
determined in line with the HAY job evaluation scheme, with 
the grade for each role being determined by a consistent 
job evaluation process. This approach followed a national 
requirement for all local authorities and other public sector 
employers to review their pay and grading frameworks to 
ensure fair and consistent practice for different groups of 
workers with the same employer. 

As part of this requirement, East Hampshire District Council 
determined a local pay framework which consists of an 
overall number of 11 grades with grade 1 being the lowest 
and grade 11 the highest. In 2020-21 we will be working to 
even out the number of incremental steps within each of the 
grades.

Each employee will be on one of the 11 grades based on the 
job evaluation of their role. Employees can progress to the 
salary range maximum of their grade subject to assessment 
of their performance in the annual performance appraisal 
process. 

Pay awards are considered annually for staff in negotiation 
with the trade unions locally. 

3.4 Reward Principles

In order to fulfil the strategic priorities set out within the 
Corporate Strategy, the council recognises that the approach 
to pay and reward needs to reflect modern employment 
practices and continuously keep abreast of the employment 
market.  Reward linked directly to performance, enhanced 
employee benefits, market supplements, retention payments 
and salaries based on benchmark data against similar 
professional roles in the public and private sector are 
considered as appropriate measures to attract and retain a 
skilled workforce.  

Page 109



6

4.  Remuneration – 
level and element 
4.1 Salaries 

4.1.1 “Chief Officers” 

Chief Officers are paid outside of the Council’s pay framework and the following 
principles are applied to Chief Officer pay;

• Chief Officer pay is based on a broad band approach and is set at market rate 
plus. This means that the entry point of the pay scale is 15% below market rate 
plus and the top of the scale is 15% above market rate plus. The mid-point 
of the scale is set at market rate plus. Market rate plus means the council is 
committed to paying 5% above the market rate based on relevant market data

• There are different bands for each of the different Chief Officer roles
• The Chief Officer pay band is benchmarked to ensure pay remains competitive 

in the market place. In determining Chief Officer pay, relevant available 
information, including the salaries of Chief Officers in other similar sized 
organisations is considered

• Each Chief Officer is paid a spot salary within the pay band described above
• Progression through the Chief Officer pay band is determined by performance 

in the role from entry level to competent midpoint. 
• A remuneration board is in place to formally ratify Chief Officer pay and pay 

progression. The remuneration board members are the Head of Paid Service, 
the Section 151 Officer, the Head of Organisational Development and a Director. 
Any decision by the remuneration board will be documented for transparency 
purposes. The remuneration boards’ decision on pay will be final

• Pay for chief officers will be determined by the JNC Chief Officer pay 
negotiations. Any award given will be effective from April of the relevant year.

• A performance award is applicable to the Chief Executive and is agreed by the 
leaders of each council via leader delegated decisions

• All pay awards for this group are noted by Joint HR Committee

Page 110



7

4.1.2  Joint Chief Executive

The Joint Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service. The remuneration for 
the Joint Chief Executive is paid outside of the Council’s pay framework. The level of 
pay for this role is determined by the Leaders of both Councils taking into account 
benchmarking. There is a broad band of salaries in place which is reviewed each April 
and the Joint Chief Executive is paid a spot salary within this range.

The annual pay review for the Joint Chief Executive is considered by the Leaders of 
both Councils.  The annual pay review takes place annually each year from 1 April.

4.2 “Lowest paid employees”

Each “lowest paid employee” is paid within the salary range for grade 1.

4.3 Other pay elements

“Chief Officers” are subject to the same performance management process as the 
“lowest paid employees” and “employees who are not Chief Officers”. 

Targets are set and performance against those targets is assessed. Chief Officers do 
not receive any incremental or step progression as they are on a spot salary which is 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Joint Chief Executive. 

Where an incremental pay award is made to a non Chief Officer, performance will be 
taken into account when determining whether this is appropriate.

4.4 Charges, fees or allowances

Any allowance or other payments will only be made to staff in connection with their 
role or the patterns of hours they work and must be in accordance with the Council’s 
collective agreement and subsequent amendments. 

Any honorarium that is paid will be paid in accordance with East Hampshire District 
Council’s arrangements for such additional payments. Further details can be provided 
on request.  

Any travel expenses reasonably incurred by an employee in the course of their duties 
will be reimbursed upon production of appropriate receipts and must be authorised 
by their line manager before payment will be made. Further detail can be provided on 
request.

Any subsistence allowance that is paid will be in accordance with the Council’s 
policy, details of which can be provided on request.

An allowance is paid to the Returning Officer for East Hampshire District Council in 
accordance with accepted national and regional scales and criteria.

Electoral duty payments are paid to all roles employed within the Elections team at 
East Hampshire District Council. These are calculated in accordance with a formula 
approved annually by the Home Office and Electoral Claims Unit. 

Further details on allowances and payments are available on request.

Page 111



8

4.5 Performance related pay

High levels of performance are expected of our employees. Performance 
and contribution during the course of the year is reviewed within the annual 
appraisal process.  

This process provides for the setting of targets on an annual basis and review of 
the employee’s achievement against those targets. 

Where a member of staff is employed within the salary and grading framework 
set out in 3.3, following assessment of the employee’s achievement against 
targets the reviewing manager will recommend a rating for each employee. 
This will be subject to consistency checks and once finalised will be taken into 
account in determining any salary progression on an incremental basis within 
the salary range or no progression.

Achieved performance: This will normally result in the progression of one 
incremental step but will not take the salary above the salary range maximum. 
This rating is awarded to the majority of staff. If an employee is at top of the 
grade range there will be no further increase.   

Improvement required: There is normally no step progression for anyone who 
does not meet the satisfactory levels of performance. 

The staff recognition scheme ‘You’re a Star’ offers rewards to staff, one of which 
is a one off payment as a reward for going above and beyond in their given role. 
A staff recognition panel awards payment. 

Any salary changes following assessment under the Appraisal process will 
normally be effective from 1 April each year.

4.6 Other

a) There is a formal provision for a payment to the Joint Chief Executive based 
on performance which is determined through the normal appraisal system 
conducted by the leaders of both councils.

b) Staff members are entitled to access corporate rates for dental and health 
cash plans through a third party supplier. 

c) A single financial benefit is payable upon death of any member of staff.  The 
benefit is paid to either widows, widowers, civil partners, cohabiting partners 
without a legal status or dependent children under the age of 19 who are still 
in full time education.  The benefit is equivalent to the greater of; one twelfth 
of one year’s salary, or £1500 after five years’ service, or £2,000 after ten years’ 
service or £2,500 after twenty years’ service.

Page 112



9

4.7 Car Loans

The current scheme offers car loans to employees based on one third of their 
annual salary or the value of the car (whichever is lower).:
 
These loans are only available to those staff who are deemed to be ‘essential 
car users’.  The loan rate is in line with the Bank of England base rate plus 1.5%, 
fixed at the point of taking out the loan.  

The term of the car loan is up to a maximum of five years.

4.8 Pension

All employees as a result of their employment are eligible to join the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. There are no increases or enhancement to 
pension entitlements. 

4.9 Severance Payments

On ceasing to be employed by East Hampshire District Council, individuals will 
only receive compensation:

a) in circumstances that are relevant (e.g. redundancy)

b) that is in accordance with our published policy statement on how we 
exercise the various employer discretions provided by the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS), and/or

c) that complies with the specific term(s) of a settlement agreement

We are already required to publish our policy on discretionary payments on 
early termination of employment as well as publishing our policy on increasing 
an employee’s total pension scheme membership and on awarding additional 
pension.  

It is important that the Council has flexibility to respond to unforeseen 
circumstances as regards re-employing former employees as a Chief Officer.  

If we re-employ a previous employee who received a redundancy or 
severance package on leaving, or if that person returns on a ‘contract for 
services’, or if they are in receipt of a Local Government Pension Scheme (with 
same or another local authority), then the decision to re-employ will be made 
on merit, taking into account the use of public money and the exigencies 
of the Council.  Decisions taken in respect of re-employment of former 
employees in receipt of a redundancy/severance package will be taken in line 
with legislation in force at that time.

Page 113



10

4.10 New starters joining the Council

Employees new to the Council and who are not Chief 
Officers will normally be appointed to the first point of 
the salary range for their grade. Where the candidate’s 
current employment package would make the first 
point of the salary range unattractive (and this can be 
demonstrated by the applicant in relation to current 
earnings) or where the employee already operates at a 
level commensurate with a higher salary, a higher salary 
may be considered by the recruiting manager.  This will 
be within the salary range for the grade. The candidate’s 
level of skill and experience should be consistent with 
that of other employees in a similar position on the 
salary range.

Employees new to the Council who are appointed to 
Chief Officer or posts outside of the salary and grading 
structure (see 3.3) will be paid a fixed salary for the post 
(see 4.1.1)

4.11 Apprenticeship Posts

The Council employs apprentices through an approved 
Apprentice Framework.  Apprentices are appointed 
onto the grade appropriate for the post.

Page 114



11

5. Relationship between 
remuneration of “Chief Officers” 
and “employees who are not 
Chief Officers”

The pay multiple based on the ratio between 
the highest paid employee and the mean 
average earnings across East Hampshire District 
Council is 1: 4.4 

The pay multiple based on the ratio between 
the highest paid employee and the lowest 
paid employee across East Hampshire District 
Council is 1: 7.6

Page 115



12

The Localism Act 2011 requires relevant 
authorities to prepare a Pay Policy Statement for 
each subsequent financial year. East Hampshire 
District Council’s annual statement is normally 
scheduled for approval by Full Council in 
advance of 1 April each year, unless there are 
exceptional circumstances.   

If it should be necessary to amend this 
statement during this financial year, an 
appropriate resolution will be made by Full 
Council.

6. Review

Page 116



 

East Hampshire District Council 
Record of Decision 

 

Non Key Decision 
 

 
1. TITLE: DEFERMENT OF ANNUAL COUNCIL 

 
   
2. PURPOSE OF DECISION 

 
For the Chief Executive to defer Annual Council and develop a remote meeting 
methodology. 
 
3. DECISION MADE BY: Chief Executive 

 
4. DECISION: 

 
(i) To defer Annual Council until May 2021 and to review this decision in October 2020 

or earlier if appropriate.  
 

(ii) To develop the ‘virtual’ or ‘remote’ meeting approach to executive and nonexecutive 
functions. 

 
5. DOCUMENT CONSIDERED: EHDC Deferment of Annual Council EH 

 
 

Decision Status Date of Decision Made Call In Expiry Date 

Recommendations Approved 21 April 2020 N/A 

Page 117

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



NON EXEMPT 
 
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 
Decision By:  Chief Executive, in Consultation with Leader  

 
DEFERMENT OF ANNUAL COUNCIL 
 
EMERGENCY SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 
Report by: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 

 

 
  

 
1.0  Purpose of Report  
 
For the Chief Executive to defer Annual Council and develop a remote meeting 
methodology. 
 
2.0 Decision  
 

(i) To defer Annual Council until May 2021 and to review this decision in October 
2020 or earlier if appropriate. 

(ii) To develop the ‘virtual’ or ‘remote’ meeting approach to executive and non-
executive functions. 
 

3.0 Issue  
 
3.1 The current Coronavirus pandemic raises a concern about the practical ability to 
hold an Annual Council or other Council Meetings. New secondary legislation has made 
provision for delaying Annual Council until May 2021. 
 
3.2 The regulations also provide for remote meetings for other executive and non-
executive functions. As a matter of urgency, the Council cancelled all April meetings 
immediately after the lockdown came into effect. There are ancillary workstreams taking 
place to allow for the provision of ‘remote’ or ‘virtual’ meetings. It is hoped that some 
virtual meeting capability will be available in or around mid-May. This short-term virtual 
meeting capacity is unlikely to be suitable for a Full Council, nor is it reasonably 
foreseeable that we will be able to move from a non-digital meeting platform to a fully 
digital meeting platform at this moment in time. 
 
3.3 The primary focus of the Council resources is directed to community, residents and 
business support.  However, the digital support function is leading and working with 
Democratic Services to deliver a useable meeting function that meets the minimum 
statutory requirements. It is likely this will not be as sophisticated as some councils who 
have existing infrastructure for audio or video streaming of Council meetings etc but it 
should be sufficient to meet the minimum temporary statutory requirements. 
 

Page 119



3.4 The temporary restrictions and regulations will provide for a less interactive public 
engagement than members and officers of the Council are familiar with. The reality is this 
provides for some member and public engagement rather than none. 

 
3.5 The Council is obliged under statute to hold an Annual Council each year to allow 
for the appointment of the Chairman/Mayor, committee chairs creation of the non-
executive committees etc. The temporary regulations in a similar way to the councillor 
elections simply provide for the current appointments to continue until either May 2021 or 
an earlier Annual Council. Simply put, business as usual continues and the Council will 
continue to function during this time. If the situation improves sufficiently to hold an earlier 
Annual Council a decision can be made at that time as to the appropriateness for a review 
at that point in the year.  
 
3.6 The current pandemic means the holding of any meeting requiring attendance in 
person would place members and officers at risk and contravene the control measures in 
place to prevent the transmission of Covid-19. The Council is attempting to put in place 
measures to allow some executive (Cabinet) and non-executive functions (eg planning 
and licencing) to continue. It will be a significant time before the ability to scale that to a 
full Council meeting is achieved. Therefore, it seems inevitable, the Council will need to 
take advantage of the provisions permitting the deferment of Annual Council until May 
2021. 
 
3.7 The current pandemic means the formal holding of any full Council meeting by 
way of attendance would contravene the intent of banning meeting of two or more 
people and undermine the control measures for control of the transmission of Covid-19. 

 
4.0     Implications  

 
4.1  Resources: There is a requirement for the support of digital team through 
technical and project expertise to ensure success. There may be a requirement for 
training and engagement with members and an understanding and willingness from 
members to engage with the technological changes. 
 
4.2  Legal: The proposed deferment and development of a technological solution 
appears to be the only practicable outcome. Careful consideration must be given to both 
the practical element, our ability to resource internally of any technological solution to 
avoid unnecessary loss of public confidence in decision making or legal challenge.  
  
4.3  Strategy: The continuation of decision making during the current Coronavirus 
pandemic will facilitate the delivery of the aims contained within the Corporate Strategy. 
This is facilitated by deferring Annual Council, thereby keeping the current structures in 
place and permitting the development of a technological solution. 
 
4.4  Risks:  The is an obvious risk if an attempt was made to hold a meeting requiring 
attendance in person. Equally attempting to hold a full Council meeting in the absence 
of a technological solution would invite challenge and comments on 
disenfranchisement. The deferment of Annual Council and the development of a 
technological solution appear to be the only current option. 
 
 
 

Page 120



5.0 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 – ‘confidential’ or 
Exempt’ Information Indicator:  
 
5.1  Any decision should be published at once and communicated to all Councillors. 
 
6.0  Is this an Urgent Decision?  
 
No. The decision must be made at least eight days prior to the May Annual Council and 
it is therefore imperative it is not delayed. 
 
7.0 Consultation with Local Member/Cabinet Lead (as appropriate): 
  
 
 Leader:                        Cllr Richard Millard 
 
 Date:     21 April 2020 
    
 

Agreed                 [Gill Kneller, Chief Executive] 
 
Date   21.4.20 
 
 
Appendices: None 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 
 
Monitoring Officer: 14.04.2020 
S151 Officer: 14.04.20 
Relevant Executive Director: 14.04.20 
Cabinet Lead: 15.04.20 
    
 
Contact Officer: David Brown 
Job Title:   Head of Legal Services 
Telephone:  02392 446524 
E-Mail:  david.brown@havant.gov.uk  

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

T 

 

 

Motion for Joined-up strategies at EHDC 
 

One of the characteristics of lockdown was the noticeable impact on the natural environment.  

It has been good to see people appreciating the great outdoors, where lockdown rules have allowed. 

The sight of families walking and cycling together in the countryside is most welcome as adults and 

children alike discover or rediscover the marvels of nature, as they improve their own well-being. 

 

Our towns and villages have developed a sense of community with the coming together of local 

support groups throughout the district. This Council’s own actions have also given much welcome 

significant relief to business and residents. 

 

We should not lose sight of the benefits that lockdown has brought, even as we remember the loss 

of loved ones and the hardship endured by our community. 

 

As EHDC considers and works on the Covid-19 recovery it is important that all Council Strategies 

are linked. There are a number of Strategies currently passing through or already adopted by 

Council. These include: 

 

 Corporate Strategy 

 Climate Strategy 

 Digital Strategy 

 Well-being Strategy 

 Green Infrastructure Strategy 

 Place-making strategy 

 

It is therefore proposed that all Strategies are cross-referenced and linked as a matter of course. No 

single strategy is to be taken in isolation and each must contain clear references to the relevant 

sections of other strategies. 

 

a) New strategies must clearly refer to other relevant ones. 

b) Adopted strategies must be reviewed to ensure consistency and cross referencing as 

required. 

 

In this way decision makers and the public will have a clear and open view that East Hampshire 

District Council is working with a joined-up approach to all its strategies. 

 

 

 

Proposed by: Cllr Neville Taylor  Seconded by: Cllr Ginny Boxall 

 

Motion to Full Council under Standing order SO14 in EHDC Constitution 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



Motion to Full Council under Standing order SO14 in EHDC Constitution 

Extended Self Employed Income Support Scheme (SEISS) V1.2 

Despite the SEISS being extended on 17 August with a further 3 month capped grant of 

£6,570, many self-employed residents still don’t qualify the grant and are suffering financial 

hardship.  Those ineligible include people who started business late in 2018 and 2019 who 

do not have a full set of accounts for 2018/19.  Many have used up savings and are 

managing on loans, some from friends and families.  This indebtedness is driving others into 

selling their homes to make ends meet.   

Compare this with a new employee joining a company and, within a couple of months, 

becoming immediately financially supported through being furloughed.  As a caring society 

we cannot allow this inequity to continue. 

Now that we are 4 months into this financial year it would not be unreasonable for the 

government to extend SEISS eligibility to those who have submitted satisfactory self-

assessment returns for 2019/20.  Such a decision would certainly ease hardship and the 

mental strain under which many are suffering.  I, therefore, propose the following motion: 

Motion  

The Council hereby resolve to write to the Government requesting that the rules 

on eligibility for the second and final Self-Employed Income Support Scheme 

(SEISS) grant be extended to include taxpayers who are already registered as self-

employed and have submitted a satisfactory self-assessment for the financial year 

2019/20.  

This motion, if adopted in full, will benefit some, but not all, of those who have adhered to 

the lockdown rules at great personal expense to themselves.  Furthermore, in creating a 

more equitable system, there is a justifiable argument for making such SEISS payments 

retrospective in the first phase of the scheme.    

 

 

Proposer:  Cllr. Trevor Maroney Seconder:  Cllr. Steve Hunt 
Date:  3 August 2020  

 

   

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel
	IRP Report East Hampshire Members' Allowance Scheme - v2 + App A

	7 Welfare & Wellbeing Vision and Action Plan
	Appendix A Welfare and Wellbeing Strategy
	Appendix 1 Action Plan
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3 Key Evidence Comparisons

	8 Digital Strategy 2020-2024
	Digital_Strategy 2020-2024 - V1
	Digital_Glossary v1

	9 Emergency Scheme of Delegations
	amended scheme of delegation
	Pandemic-Guide to Decision Making
	Appendix 3

	11 Climate & Environment Strategy
	Climate Environment Strategy 2020 to 2025 JED Full Council version rev

	12 Pay Policy Statement
	EHDC - Pay policy statement jul20

	13 Delegated Decision for Noting
	EHDC Deferment of Annual Council EH

	14 Motions Received under Procedural Order 14.1
	Motion on SEISS - Aug 20 V1.2


